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The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year to 31 March 2016.  Bradford & Bingley plc ('B&B' or 'the 
Company') is a public limited company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and is 
registered in England and Wales.  The Company and its subsidiary undertakings comprise the Bradford & Bingley plc Group 
('the Group'). 
 

Overview 

 

The Group and Company primarily operates as a servicer of mortgage loans secured on residential properties and of 
associated services.  No new lending is carried out. 

On 1 October 2010 UK Asset Resolution Limited ('UKAR') was established as the holding company for B&B and NRAM plc 
(‘NRAM’) bringing together the two brands under shared management and a common Board of Directors. 

After the transfer into public ownership by the Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities & Property etc. Order 2008, the 
Group closed its doors to new mortgage applications in 2008 and committed to lend only where a formal mortgage offer or 
further advance arrangement had already contractually been made.  B&B ceased to increase loans to existing customers 
except in specific circumstances where doing so supported the strategic priorities of running down the Balance Sheet or 
minimising impairments and losses.  In accordance with this strategy, the Group has already taken a number of actions to 
facilitate mortgage redemptions and continues to plan additional initiatives with the same aim. 

The overall aim of UKAR is to maximise value for the taxpayer.  This will be achieved by focusing on key activities and 
themes based on each of the following three objectives: 

 reduce, protect and optimise the Balance Sheet; 

 to maximise cost-effectiveness and efficiency through continuous improvement; and  

 to be excellent in customer and debt management. 

These objectives are underpinned by the need to treat all stakeholders fairly. 

On 4 May 2016 it was announced that UKAR had signed a seven year contract with Computershare for the outsourcing of 
mortgage servicing operations.  On commencement of the outsourcing arrangement in early June 2016 around 1,700 
colleagues will transfer to Computershare.   

As announced in the Chancellor’s Budget on 16 March 2016, UKAR is exploring the possibility of a major sales programme 
of B&B mortgages.  This programme of sales will be designed to raise sufficient proceeds for B&B to repay the £15.65 billion 
debt from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS’) and for the FSCS to repay its corresponding loan from the 
Treasury.  Any sales will be subject to market conditions and ensuring value for money.  
 

Highlights of 2015/16 
 

During the year we have made significant progress against all our key objectives and overall mission of maximising value for 
the taxpayer.  The key highlights are: 

 Balance Sheet reduced by a further £1.0bn bringing the total reduction to £15.4bn, over 33% since formation of 
UKAR in 2010. 

 Mortgage accounts three or more months in arrears, including possessions, have reduced by 20% since 31 March 
2015 to 2,803. 

 Underlying profit before tax of £436.3m for the year to March 2016 is £66.7m lower than the previous year.  The 
reduction was driven by a lower loan impairment credit reflecting slower house price growth than seen in the prior 
year. 

 Repurchased £1.0bn of covered bonds, simplifying our Balance Sheet and increasing our ability to deliver future 
transactions to the benefit of the taxpayer. 

 Signed a contract with Computershare for the servicing of £30bn of customer loans, including NRAM loans which 
B&B services.  For further details see note 37. 
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Key performance indicators ('KPIs')  
 
In addition to the primary Financial Statements, we have adopted the following KPIs in managing business performance in 
the context of its strategic priorities. 

Strategic 
priorities 

Financial measures 
 

March 2016 
 

 
March 2015 

 
Commentary 

 

Optimise the Balance 
Sheet 

 

 

Total lending balances £bn 
 

 

 

25.0 
 

 

27.3 
 

 

Lending balances reduced by 8.4% during the 
year primarily due to £2.2bn of residential 
redemptions and £0.1bn of commercial 
repayments. 

 

Residential mortgage redemption rate % 
Residential redemptions £bn 
 
 

 

8.1 
2.2 

 

6.3 
1.9 

 

Redemption rates have increased compared 
to 2015 reflecting increases in house prices, 
improved levels of remortgage activity across 
the market and more competitive deals being 
available. 

 

Government loan repayments £bn 
Government loan balance £bn 

 

0.1 
20.9 

 

2.4 
21.0 

 

Net repayments of £0.1bn were made in the 
year against the Working Capital Facility 
(‘WCF’).  The reduction in loan repayments 
reflects the utilisation of cash to repurchase 
Covered Bonds in March 2016 and fund 
contractual maturities in May 2016.  The WCF 
balance of £2.5bn, excluding accrued interest, 
is within the £11.5bn maximum facility level 
currently agreed with HM Treasury.  No 
payments were made against the Statutory 
Debt and the balance remains at £18.4bn at 
31 March 2016.  

 

Total cash payments to HM Treasury 
£bn 

 

 

0.3 
 

2.8 
Total cash paid to HM Treasury during the 
year.  This includes principal and interest 
repayments, State Guarantee Fees and 
corporation tax paid.  The main driver of the 
decrease is the lower principal repayments 
explained above. 

 

Minimise impairment  
and losses 

 

 

Residential arrears balance: total 
residential mortgage balance % 
Residential payments overdue £m 

 

 
0.06 
15.9 

 

 
0.07 
19.3 

 

This represents the value of customers’ 
missed payments as a proportion of the total 
balance of all residential mortgages and the 
reduction reflects that the level of overdue 
debt owed on mortgages is falling faster than 
the book. 

 

Residential arrears 3 months and over 
and possessions as % of the book: 
- by value 
- by number of accounts 
Number of residential arrears 3 months 
and over and possessions cases 

 

 
 

1.55 
1.33 

 
2,803 

 

 
 

1.84 
1.54 

 
3,525 

 
The reduction in arrears reflects both our 
continued focus on customers in financial 
difficulty and the continuing support provided 
to mortgage customers by low interest rates. 

 

Impairment provisions: 
Residential secured £m 
Cover % 
Commercial/other £m 
Cover % 

 

 

 
448.5 
1.79 
76.1 

18.97 

 

 
499.5 
1.82 
60.8 

13.21 
 

 

The level of the residential impairment 
Balance Sheet provision reduced by £51.0m 
and the level of cover reduced to 1.79%.  The 
level of the commercial impairment provision 
increased by £15.3m and the level of cover 
increased by 5.76%. 

 

Reduce costs 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Total costs £m 
Ongoing costs £m 
Ratio of costs to average interest-
earning assets: 
- statutory %  
- ongoing % 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

180.1 
106.7 

 
 

0.61 
0.36 

 

 

84.7 
84.7 

 
 

0.27 
0.27 

 

Total costs include £73.4m in relation to the 
project to outsource mortgage servicing to 
Computershare. 
 

Ongoing costs have increased.  Since the sale 
of NRAM loans to Cerberus, B&B have 
retained the costs associated with servicing 
this book.  Servicing fees are charged to 
Cerberus but are included in other income. 
 

The ratio of ongoing costs to average interest-
earning assets has increased reflecting the 
increase in costs noted above. 
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Business review 

 
These financial results are for the year to 31 March 2016.   
 

Performance 
 

The Board continue to believe it is appropriate to assess performance based on the underlying profits of the business, which 
excludes the remediation of inherited regulatory defects and certain gains or losses such as the repurchase of our own 
liabilities at a discount or premium.  Whilst these gains or losses permanently impact capital reserves, the Board does not 
believe that they reflect the performance of the underlying business.  Also excluded are movements in fair value and hedge 
ineffectiveness relating to financial instruments which are expected to be held to maturity. These movements will have no 
material impact over the life of the associated financial instruments.  The commentary on the results in this statement uses 
underlying profits and its components as the primary measure of performance.  An analysis of the difference between the 
statutory profit and the underlying profit of the Group is provided below. 

Underlying profit for the year to March 2016 has decreased by £66.7m to £436.3m (March 2015: £503.0m).  The decrease 
was primarily due to a lower loan impairment credit reflecting slower house price growth than seen in the prior year.  

Underlying net operating income for the year to March 2016 increased by £18.5m to £524.2m (March 2015: £505.7m).  The 
increase was driven by an improved funding mix as the WCF is repaid and the receipt of interim servicing fees following the 
sale of NRAM loans. 

Ongoing administrative expenses increased.  For the year to March 2016 expenses were £22.0m higher than the previous 
year at £106.7m (March 2015: £84.7m).  Impairment on loans to customers for the year to March 2016 was a credit of 
£16.7m (March 2015: £80.0m credit) a decrease of £63.3m from March 2015.  Net impairment on investment securities was 
a £2.1m credit for the year to March 2016 (March 2015: £2.0m).  The number of mortgage accounts three or more months in 
arrears including possessions reduced by 20% from 3,525 at March 2015 to 2,803 at March 2016. 

For the year to March 2016, statutory profit before tax was £332.6m (March 2015: £413.4m). 
 
Income Statement 
 

For the year ended 31 March:  2016 2015 

 £m £m 

 Net interest income 490.2 477.6 

 Underlying non interest income 1  34.0 28.1 

 Underlying net operating income 524.2 505.7 

 Ongoing administrative expenses (106.7) (84.7) 

 Impairment on loans to customers 16.7 80.0 

 Net impairment on investment securities 2.1 2.0 

 Underlying profit before taxation 436.3 503.0 

 Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments (2.5) 23.5 

 Hedge ineffectiveness (6.7) (67.8) 

 Other net administrative expenses (73.4) - 

 Provision for customer redress (18.7) (10.3) 

 Profit on sale of loans - 15.3 

 Loss on repurchase of own liabilities (2.4) (50.3) 

 Statutory profit before taxation 332.6 413.4 

 

1 Underlying non interest income includes total fee and commission income, net realised gains less losses on investment securities and 
other operating income. 

 
Net interest income 

Net interest income for the year to March 2016 was £490.2m (March 2015: £477.6m).  The increase in net interest income is 
due to funding costs reducing quicker than interest receivable.  The underlying net interest margin increased 0.15% to 
1.65%, primarily due to reducing funding costs as the relatively expensive WCF is repaid.  The WCF interest rate of Bank 
Base Rate + 500bps is in excess of the average yield on interest earning assets of 2.31%.  Over the past three years, the 
cost of interest-bearing funding has fallen significantly as the WCF balance has reduced and is now 2.11% (March 2015: 
2.44%). 
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Business review (continued) 

 

Performance (continued) 
 
Underlying net non-interest income  
 

Underlying net non-interest income was £34.0m for the year to March 2016 (March 2015: £28.1m).  The increase is mainly 
due to the recognition of £14.0m of interim servicing fees, following the sale of NRAM loans to Cerberus. The prior year 
included £9.6m of profits on the sale and leaseback of the Crossflatts (West Yorkshire) property. 
 
Provision for customer redress 
 

A further charge of £18.7m for customer redress was made during the year to address inherited issues largely relating to 
Payment Protection Insurance ('PPI') following the publication of the Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA’) consultation paper 
regarding a potential time bar and the Plevin v Paragon Personal Finance Limited case (‘the Plevin case’). 
 
Accounting volatility on derivative financial instruments 
 

B&B uses derivative financial instruments for economic hedging purposes.  Some of these are designated and accounted for 
as IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' compliant fair value or cash flow hedge relationships. 
Where effective hedge relationships can be established, the movement in the fair value of the derivative is offset in full or in 
part by opposite movements in the fair value of the instrument being hedged or being taken to reserves.  Any ineffectiveness 
arising from different movements in fair value will offset over the life of the hedge relationship.  

The Income Statement charge for hedge ineffectiveness was £6.7m in the year (March 2015: £67.8m).  The reduction in the 
charge in the year was due to the prior year being impacted by the early termination of a number of derivatives that were no 
longer required, having remodelled the projected run off of the B&B Lifetime mortgage portfolio. 

Unrealised fair value movements were a charge of £2.5m for the year to March 2016 (March 2015: £23.5m credit).  These 
losses generally relate to derivatives that act as an economic hedge but were not treated as an accounting hedge under IAS 
39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'.     
 
Administrative expenses 
 

Ongoing administrative expenses for the year to March 2016 were £106.7m (March 2015: £84.7m).  The ratio of ongoing 
costs to average interest-earning assets was 0.36% (March 2015: 0.27%).  Ongoing costs have increased, primarily as a 
result of the sale of NRAM loans to Cerberus, for which B&B retained the costs associated with servicing the loans.  
Servicing fees are charged to Cerberus and recognised in non-interest income.     
 
Non recurring costs of £73.4m have been recognised in relation to the outsourcing of mortgage servicing to Computershare 
and include the costs of an internal transformation programme to separate the mortgage servicing capability from the asset 
management function and the costs of transaction advisors.  
 
Arrears and loan impairment  
 

Strong arrears performance continues, B&B has seen arrears fall as a direct consequence of proactive arrears management 
coupled with the continued low interest rate environment.  Residential loan impairment for the year to March 2016 was a 
£32.0m credit (March 2015: £79.3m credit). This was £47.3m lower than the 2014/15 credit, reflecting slower house price 
growth than seen in the previous year and lower recoveries.  Write-offs in the year totalled £43.8m (March 2015: £62.7m). 

The residential loan impairment provision as at 31 March 2016 was £448.5m (March 2015: £499.5m).  The reduction of 
£51.0m reflects sales of properties from possession and lower arrears volumes.  As a proportion of balances, the residential 
impairment provision was 1.79% (March 2015: 1.82%).  

The number of cases three months or more in arrears, including those in possession, fell by 20% to close the year at 2,803 
cases (March 2015: 3,525). 

The number of properties in possession reduced from 381 cases at March 2015 to 327 at March 2016. In addition to 
residential property possessions, we also have a number of buy-to-let properties managed by a Law of Property Act ('LPA') 
receiver.  Our LPA 'for sale' stock increased from 225 cases in March 2015 to 252 in March 2016.  

Commercial impairment was a charge of £15.3m in the year to March 2016 (March 2015: £0.7m credit).  The March 2016 
provision for the commercial book increased to £76.1m (March 2015: £60.8m) mainly due to revised valuations on one large 
commercial portfolio. 
 
Net impairment release on investment assets  
 

B&B continues to review securities held on the Balance Sheet and believes the risk of further impairment is not significant.  
During the financial year we have identified a number of assets where events have occurred that caused us to reverse 
impairments previously charged.  These have resulted in a net credit to impairment in the year of £2.1m (March 2015: 
£2.0m). 
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Business review (continued) 
 

Performance (continued) 
 

Loss on repurchase of own liabilities  
 

In the year to March 2016, the Group repurchased £1,012.9m (March 2015: £330.3m) of its liabilities, resulting in a net loss 
of £2.4m (March 2015: £50.3m).  Whilst this resulted in a net loss within the year, the transaction creates value for the 
taxpayer by removing future liabilities, simplifies our Balance Sheet and increases our ability to deliver future transactions to 
the benefit of the taxpayer.  
 
Taxation 
 

The overall tax charge for the year to March 2016 is £84.0m (March 2015: £84.0m), giving an effective tax rate of 25.3% 
(March 2015: 20.3%). The effective tax rate is higher than the statutory rate due to disallowable restructuring costs and 
expenses in relation to PPI customer compensation costs following legislation that came into effect on 8 July 2015.  
 

Balance Sheet 
 

The Balance Sheet has decreased by £1.0bn since March 2015 primarily as a result of a reduction in lending balances of 
£2.3bn (8.4%) during the year to £25.0bn (March 2015: £27.3bn), partly offset by a £1.5bn increase in cash, which was 
primarily required to fund a large contractual maturity in May 2016.  The reduction in lending balances was driven by £2.2bn 
of residential redemptions and £0.1bn of commercial repayments. 
 
Liabilities 
 

The Statutory Debt remained static over the year to March 2016 at £18.4bn but the WCF excluding accrued interest reduced 
by £0.1bn (March 2015: £2.4bn reduction) to £2.46bn (March 2015: £2.54bn).  Wholesale funding decreased by £1.3bn to 
£5.5bn (March 2015: £6.8bn) reflecting the repurchase of the two Covered Bonds and the repayment of maturing debt. 

At the start of the year, B&B had £5.3bn of funding from HM Treasury, plus a further £15.7bn owed to the FSCS.  
Repayment of this debt remains a primary objective of B&B.  In the year to March 2016 £0.1bn (March 2015: £2.4bn) of HM 
Treasury debt was repaid and, in addition, £0.2bn of other cash flows were generated for HM Treasury in the form of State 
Guarantee Fees, interest and taxes.  The Board considers the total of all these cash flows paid to HM Treasury to be an 
important measure. Total cash repayments to HM Treasury in 2015/16 were £0.3bn (March 2015: £2.8bn).  At March 2016 
the gross loan balance due to HM Treasury and the FSCS was £20.9bn (March 2015: £21.0bn). 
 

Capital 
 

The Company operates under a MIPRU regulatory status.  While FCA rules require the Company to hold capital in excess of 
1% of the Company's total Balance Sheet assets plus any undrawn commitments, the Board believes it appropriate to hold a 
higher level of capital reflecting the increased risk in the business compared to a standard MIPRU firm.  As at 31 March 
2016 capital in the Company represented 9.4% of the Company's assets (March 2015: 7.7%). 

The Company's capital is provided by its shareholder (currently HM Treasury).  B&B met its capital requirements in full 
throughout the year to March 2016 and has received no additional capital from HM Treasury. 

The Company's total capital resources of £2,725.8m are £385.0m higher than at 31 March 2015, mainly due to a £300m 
reduction in the company’s investment in Mortgage Express following the maturity of an intercompany subordinated loan and 
profits generated in the year, partly offset by an increase in the net pension adjustment reflecting an increase in the value of 
the pension assets. 
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Principal risks and uncertainties 

 

Introduction  
 

The following sections describe the Group's major risk categories under management.  Other factors could affect the 
Group's results, including economic factors.  Therefore, the categories of risk described below should not be considered to 
represent all of the potential risks and uncertainties which could impact the Group. 
 

Risk categorisation 
 

During the year the Group categorised risk under the following headings: 
 
(i) Credit risk   
 

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss caused by a retail or commercial customer, or wholesale counterparty, failing to 
meet their obligations to the Group as they become due.  As the Group is no longer making any new retail loans, the 
absolute level of retail credit risk is expected to decline as the current assets mature and wholesale credit risk will decline in 
line with the maturity profile of financial instruments and investments.  Credit risk is the largest risk the Group faces and the 
monitoring of the recoverability of loans and amounts due from counterparties is inherent across most of the Group's 
activities. 

The Group employs credit behavioural scoring and fraud detection techniques to support loss minimising strategies.  As no 
new lending is now being undertaken, the focus of credit risk activities is on: 

 a proactive approach to the identification and control of loan impairment in the residential and commercial credit 
risk and credit control areas;  

 fraud and professional negligence investigation; and 

 the use of credit behavioural scoring and other techniques to monitor the risk profile of the existing book. 

Adverse changes in the credit quality of borrowers or a general deterioration in UK economic conditions could affect the 
recoverability and value of the Group's assets and therefore the Group's financial performance. 

As credit risk is the main risk to the Group, a Credit Risk Framework has been established as part of the overall governance 
framework to measure, mitigate and manage credit risk within risk appetite.  To a lesser degree, the Group is exposed to 
other forms of credit risk such as those arising from settlement activities where the risk is a consequence of a transaction, 
rather than a driver of it.  

The impact of credit risk on the Group’s Balance Sheet is shown by the following table of provisions for mark-downs on 
impaired assets: 
 

 
Balance 

Sheet 
value 

Provision 
Balance 

Sheet 
value 

Provision 

 2016 2016 2015 2015 

At 31 March £m £m £m £m 

Loans secured on residential property 24,635 449 26,916 500 

Other secured loans 325 76 400 61 

Wholesale assets 4,184 104 2,864 154 

 
The Group's ability to influence the structure of its credit risk profiles, in the absence of asset sales, is largely restricted to the 
degree of control which it has over risk strategy, loan redemptions and credit collections activity.  With the composition of the 
loan portfolio largely fixed in the short to medium term, the Group's credit risk profiles are now determined by the credit 
quality of the existing portfolio.  Changes in credit quality will arise from changes in the underlying economic environment, 
assumptions about the future trends in the economy, changes in the specific characteristics of individual loans and the credit 
risk strategies developed to enhance the book whilst mitigating credit risk. 

It is Group policy to monitor the profile of the Group's lending exposure quarterly.  Changes in the risk profile are reported as 
part of the Group's stress tests. The stress tests forecast losses, impairment and capital requirements at a portfolio and 
product level over a ten year horizon given a range of economic scenarios. 

The Board receives a monthly update on changes in the key drivers of the lending credit risk profile, with more detailed 
information on the factors underlying these key drivers being reported monthly to the Executive Risk Committee ('ERC'). 
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued) 
 

Risk categorisation (continued) 
 
(i) Credit risk (continued)   
 

Credit related policies and limits are developed and maintained within Credit Risk and are reviewed and approved annually 
by the Board, or when significant changes to policies are recommended.  The ERC ensures that any exposure to credit risk 
remains within overall risk exposure levels as agreed by the Board. 

Authorised credit risk limits for wholesale counterparties reflect their credit rating as well as size, depth and quality of their 
capital base.  Wholesale credit related policies and limits are developed and maintained by Wholesale Risk and are 
approved by the Board at least annually, or when material changes to policies are recommended. 

The Group holds a structured finance portfolio that primarily consists of investments in Asset Backed Securities (‘ABS’).  The 
credit risk is determined by the quality of the underlying securitised assets.  Credit risk continues to fall as the quality of 
underlying assets improves and the size of the portfolio reduces.  No new structured finance investments are permitted apart 
from the purchase of those issued by the Group's own secured funding vehicles. 
 
(ii) Market risk  
 

Market risk is the potential for change in Group income or Group net worth arising from movements in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates or other market prices.  Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining 
stable net interest income.  The Group does not trade or make markets in any areas and market risk only arises either as a 
legacy of past business or from supporting core activities. 

Market risk comprises interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.  Interest rate risk is principally managed via interest rate 
swaps and foreign exchange risk by foreign exchange contracts. 

The Board's appetite for market risk is set out in the Board approved Market Risk Policy.  Responsibility for staying within 
risk appetite is delegated to the Finance & Investment Director and exposures are reported daily by Finance to senior 
management and monthly by Wholesale Risk to the Asset and Liability Committee ('ALCO').  ALCO is responsible for 
ensuring that the Finance & Investment Director implements market risk strategies consistently with the Board's Risk 
Appetite. 

 
(iii) Liquidity risk  
 

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to pay liabilities as they fall due and arises from both the mismatch in asset, liability, 
derivative and collateral cash flows and from unforeseen changes to these. 

The Board's appetite for liquidity risk is low and is managed to ensure it has an adequate level of liquidity to meet its 
commitments at all times and maintained within agreed HM Treasury facilities, with minimum liquidity levels set out in the 
Board approved Liquidity Risk Policy.  Responsibility for managing liquidity risk is delegated to the Finance & Investment 
Director. Stress tests are used to assess the adequacy of liquidity both daily and monthly by Finance and Wholesale Risk 
and the results are reported to ALCO.  ALCO is responsible for ensuring that the strategies of the Finance & Investment 
Director maintain liquidity risk within the Board's Risk Appetite. 

Sterling liquidity is held as cash balances at the Bank of England.  Euro and US dollar cash balances are placed with a 
range of banks and money market funds. 
 
(iv) Conduct risk  
 

Conduct risk is managed at a UKAR Group level and is defined as the 'risk of treating customers unfairly and delivering 
inappropriate outcomes leading to customer detriment or impacting market integrity'.  

This risk category is governed by a Conduct Risk Framework ('CRF'), which was established during 2013. The CRF forms 
part of UKAR's existing Enterprise Wide Risk Management Framework ('EWRMF').  Through the EWRMF the approach to 
conduct risk will be led by Senior Management and the Board.  It ensures a joined-up and consistent approach to the 
management of conduct risk and has been integrated into business strategy, management and decision making.  

The CRF sets out the approach to the effective assessment, management and monitoring of conduct risk in accordance with 
our stated conduct risk appetite.  The Group has a zero risk appetite for systemic conduct risk that could lead to unfair 
customer outcomes or pose a risk to market integrity.  Conduct risk is an integral part of the way the Group does business, 
specifically, the interests of customers and market integrity are at the heart of the Group's strategy, business and culture.   
With clear and visible leadership from the Board everyone takes responsibility for good conduct throughout our business 
model with established controls to deliver fair and appropriate outcomes to our customers.  Our market conduct ensures that 
the Group has no impact on market integrity.  To support this annual mandatory conduct risk training has been introduced 
for all colleagues. 
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued) 
 

Risk categorisation (continued) 
 

(v) Regulatory risk  
 

Regulatory risk is the risk of failing to comply with the legal and regulatory requirements applying to the Group’s 
arrangements and activities.  The Group has a zero regulatory risk appetite and undertakes its activities in line with this.  The 
Group has established, implements and maintains policies and procedures designed to detect any risk of failure by the 
Group to comply with its obligations under the regulatory system, as well as associated risks, and has put in place adequate 
measures and procedures designed to minimise these risks and to enable the FCA (and any relevant regulator) to exercise 
its powers effectively under the regulatory system. 
 
(vi) Operational risk  
 

Operational risk is defined as 'the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or 
from external events'. 

The Operational Risk Framework consists of an appropriate suite of policies, standards and procedures to enable effective 
identification, assessment, monitoring and reporting of key operational risks.  The framework is overseen and reported on by 
the Operational Risk Function.  The key objectives of the Framework are as follows:  

 Risk & Control Self Assessment  

Provision of a consistent framework for the identification, assessment, monitoring and reporting of significant risks 
and key controls across the Group.  Where controls are assessed as ineffective in design or operation, a defined 
Corrective Action Plan process is in place to develop, track and implement control improvements. 

 Operational risk event reporting  

Provision of a consistent framework for the identification, investigation, assessment and reporting of operational risk 
events (losses, gains and near misses) across the Group.  Root cause analysis performed as part of operational 
risk event reporting enhances the control environment by directing control improvement effort where there is a risk 
of event recurrence. 

 Key Risk Indicators  

Key Risk Indicators are defined as measured metrics that track changes in the level of risk exposure and control 
effectiveness through reference to defined risk tolerances that are aligned to the Group’s risk appetite.  These 
metrics provide an early warning of shifting risk exposures to identify emerging risks and enable control 
implementation before risks materialise. 

 Operational risk weighted financial impact analysis and scenario analysis 

The Group undertakes operational risk weighted financial impact analysis and scenario analysis to calculate the 
financial impact of both expected and unexpected operational risk events.  This analysis facilitates a comparison 
between operational risk, financial exposure and the operational risk capital allocation derived under the Group's 
capital adequacy assessment process. 

 
(vii) Strategic risk 
 

Strategic risk is managed at a UKAR Group level and is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings and/or fair 
value, given the B&B Group and the NRAM Group Balance Sheet structure, arising from changes in the business 
environment and from adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions or lack of responsiveness to 
changes in the business environment. 

The UKAR Group considers the primary strategic risks to be the macroeconomic environment, market pressures, structural 
asset/liability mix, political, regulatory and legal risk, infrastructure risk (including managing a mortgage book in wind down) 
and project risk.   

The UKAR Group's focus is on continuous assessment and measurement of movement in strategic risk status in order to 
ensure continuous monitoring of potential impacts on the Ten Year Plan, annual business and operating plans and the 
UKAR Group's overarching strategic objectives.  Thus, close oversight of movements in strategic risk (proximity, financial 
impact, probability) is maintained via monthly reporting to the Executive Committee and the Board.  Where appropriate and 
taking in to account the mainly external nature of strategic risk, risk management strategies can then be defined to mitigate 
the impact of a risk event arising. 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard Banks 

Chief Executive Officer, on behalf of the Board 
23 May 2016 
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Other matters 

 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

Information regarding the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group, in relation to the use of financial 
instruments, is given in note 34.  A description of the principal risks to which the Group and Company are exposed is 
provided on pages 8 to 10 which form an integral part of the audited consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Group structure  
 

On 1 October 2010 UKAR was established as the holding company for B&B and NRAM, bringing together the two 
companies under shared management and a common Board of Directors. 

UKAR itself is 100% owned by the UK government which exercises control through UK Financial Investments Limited 
('UKFI') which was set up on 3 November 2008 to manage the government’s investments in Royal Bank of Scotland, Lloyds 
Banking Group, Northern Rock and Bradford & Bingley. 

Although managed under a common board and management structure, NRAM and B&B remain separate legal entities and 
continue to operate as individual companies with their own individual brands and Balance Sheets. 
 
Corporate Governance 
 

B&B is governed and controlled by UKAR as its sole shareholder.  Please refer to the UKAR Group Annual Report and 
Accounts for a summary of the governance regime applicable to B&B. 
 
Directors   
 

The names of the Directors of the Company are below.   
 
Richard Pym  Chairman for whole of 2015/16 
Richard Banks  Director for whole of 2015/16 
Ian Hares  Director for whole of 2015/16 
David Lunn  Director for whole of 2015/16 
Kent Atkinson  Senior Independent Director for whole of 2015/16 
Michael Buckley  Director for whole of 2015/16 
Sue Langley  Director for whole of 2015/16 
Keith Morgan  Director for whole of 2015/16 
John Tattersall  Director for whole of 2015/16 
Brendan McDonagh Appointed 4 April 2016 
 
Directors' interests  
 

Throughout the year UKAR, B&B and NRAM shared a common Board of Directors. Their individual profiles are included 
within the UKAR Group Annual Report and Accounts. 
 
Directors’ remuneration 
 

Details of Directors' remuneration are set out in the UKAR Group Annual Report and Accounts.  These are available on 
UKAR's website at www.ukar.co.uk. The remuneration disclosed in the UKAR Group accounts is the total remuneration for 
the Directors for all UKAR companies. 
 
Directors’ conflicts of interest  
 

The Board, as permitted by the Company’s articles of association, has authorised all potential conflicts of interest declared 
by individual Directors and a full register is reviewed and maintained. 
 
Directors’ indemnities  
 

UKAR has provided each Director with a Deed of Indemnity, which constituted 'qualifying third party indemnity provision' in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.  The Deeds were in force during the whole of the financial year 
ended 31 March 2016 and remain in force as at the date of approval of the Directors’ Report.     

The Deeds indemnify the Directors to the fullest extent permitted by law against all losses suffered or incurred in respect of 
acts and omissions arising as a result of holding office.  The indemnities also extend to the reimbursement of each Director 
with the costs of defending all claims, actions and proceedings including regulatory investigation arising out of or connected 
with the exercise of, or failure to exercise, any of the Director’s powers, duties or responsibilities as an officer, Director, 
trustee, agent or employee of the UKAR Group and any of its subsidiaries.  Reimbursement is subject to the Director’s 
obligation to repay the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.  The payment obligations of 
the Company under each Deed of Indemnity are backed by a specific guarantee in favour of the Director entered into 
between the Company and HM Treasury. 

The Company has also arranged Directors' and Officers' Insurance on behalf of the Directors in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 

http://www.ukar.co.uk/
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Other matters (continued) 

 

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities  
 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Audited consolidated Annual Report and the Financial Statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for 
each financial period.  Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as adopted by the European Union.  Under company 
law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.  In preparing these 
Financial Statements, the Directors are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  

 state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and 

 prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Company will continue in business. 

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the 
Group and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the 
Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website and legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of each person’s knowledge and belief: 

 the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the 
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company; 

 the Directors’ Report contained in the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of 
the business and the position of the Company and Group, together with a description of the principal risks and 
uncertainties that they face; and 

 The Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, providing the information 
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy. 

 
Going concern  
 

The Directors have assessed, taking into consideration the principal risks set out on pages 8 to 10, potential future strategic 
options and the current and anticipated economic conditions, the Company's and the Group's ability to continue as a going 
concern.  As set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements, HM Treasury has provided confirmation to the Directors of those 
two companies that it is HM Treasury's intention to fund those companies so as to maintain them as a going concern and 
has provided various on-demand facilities to each of those companies, to enable those companies to meet their debts as 
and when they fall due, for a period up to at least 1 January 2018.  Accordingly, the Directors of B&B are satisfied at the time 
of approval of these Financial Statements that the B&B Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future.  The Directors of the Company confirm that, therefore, they are satisfied that the 
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and for this reason 
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.   
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Other matters (continued) 
 
Employees   
 

The B&B Group is committed to providing employment practices and policies which recognise the diversity of our workforce 
and ensure equality for employees regardless of gender, race, disability, age, sexual orientation or religious belief.  The 
Group gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their 
particular aptitudes and abilities.  Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career 
development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group.  If members of staff become disabled the Group 
continues employment, either in the same or an alternative position, with appropriate retraining being given if necessary. 

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through measures such as team meetings, briefings, 
internal communications and engagement surveys.  There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with 
our recognised union, to ensure that the views of employees are taken into account in reaching decisions. 

The B&B Group is committed to providing employees with comprehensive coverage of the economic and financial issues 
affecting the Group. We have established a full suite of communication channels, including an extensive face-to-face briefing 
programme which allows us to update our employees on our performance and any financial issues on a regular basis. 

The Non-Executive Directors have service contracts with UKAR. All Executive Directors and colleagues were employed by 
B&B (the legal employer) during 2015/16. 
 
Charitable contributions 
 

B&B supports fundraising activities by matching the first £250 of funds raised per employee and by matching employee 
donations through a payroll-giving programme.  During the year to March 2016, B&B matched employee fundraising to the 
total of £33,909 (March 2015: £33,823) and payroll-giving totalled £39,885 (March 2015: £16,246).  
 
Dividends 
 

No dividends were paid during the year to March 2016 (March 2015: nil) and the Directors do not recommend the payment 
of a final dividend. 
 
Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors 
 

As at the date of this report, each person who is a Director confirms that: 

 So far as each Director is aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are 
unaware; and 

 Each Director has taken such steps as he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make him or herself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information. 

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 (2) of the Companies 
Act 2006. 

A resolution to appoint the National Audit Office as the Group’s auditors will be put to the Shareholder at the forthcoming 
AGM. 
 
 
 
 
Richard Banks 

Chief Executive Officer, on behalf of the Board 
23 May 2016
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Independent Auditors' report to the Members of Bradford & Bingley plc 
 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 
Our opinion 
 

In our opinion: 

 Bradford & Bingley plc’s Group Financial Statements and Parent Company Financial Statements (the ‘Financial 

Statements’) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 

March 2016 and of the Group’s profit and the Group’s and the Parent Company’s cash flows for the year then 

ended; 

 the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union; 

 the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by 

the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and 

 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

 

What we have audited 
 

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report, comprise: 

 the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets as at 31 March 2016; 

 the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then 
ended; 

 the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended; 

 the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; 

 the accounting policies; and 

 the notes to the Financial Statements, which include other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Financial Statements is IFRSs as adopted 
by the European Union and applicable by law and, as regards the Parent Company Financial Statements, as applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in 
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future 
events. 

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
 

 

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the 
Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements. 
 
 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 

 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have 
not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 
 
 

Directors’ remuneration 
 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ 
remuneration specified by law are not made.  We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.  
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Independent Auditors' report to the Members of Bradford & Bingley plc (continued) 
 
 

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements and the audit 
 

 

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors 
 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities as set out on page 12, the Directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’).  Those standards require us to comply with the 
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.  We do not, in giving these opinions, accept 
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it 
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

 

What an audit of financial statements involves 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland).  An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This includes an assessment of: 
 

 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the Parent Company’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;  

 

 the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and 
 

 the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.  
 

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our 
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the Financial Statements. 

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to 
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions.  We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of 
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.  

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies 
with the audited Financial Statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.  If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

 
 
 
 
Gary Shaw (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
Leeds 
23 May 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



           Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             16 

The Accounts 

 

Page 

17 Consolidated Income Statement 

18 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

19 Balance Sheets 

20 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

21 Company Statement of Changes in Equity 

22 Cash Flow Statements 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Page Note 

23 1 Principal accounting policies 

32 2 Critical judgements and accounting estimates 

33 3 Net interest income 

33 4 Net realised gains less losses on investment securities                                                                                                                                                                                       

34 5  Unrealised fair value movements on financial 

  instruments and hedge ineffectiveness 

34 6 Administrative expenses  

35 7 Loss on repurchase of own liabilities 

36 8 Taxation 

37 9 Investment securities  

38 10 Wholesale assets 

41 11 Loans to customers  

42 12 Impairment on loans to customers 

43 13 Credit quality of loans to customers 

46 14 Investments in Group undertakings  

48 15 Deferred taxation 

49 16 Other assets 

50 17 Property, plant and equipment 

51 18 Intangible assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page   Note 

51 19 Amounts due to banks 

52 20 Other deposits 

52 21 Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 

53 22 Debt securities in issue 

54 23 Other liabilities 

55 24 Retirement benefit obligations 

57 25 Provisions 

59 26 Capital instruments 

59 27 Share capital 

59 28 Reserves 

60 29 Off-Balance Sheet commitments 

61 30 Related party disclosures 

62 31 Capital structure 

63 32 Financial instruments 

71 33 Collateral pledged and received 

71 34 Financial risk management 

79 35 Contingent liabilities 

80 36 Ultimate controlling party  

80 37 Events after the reporting period 

 

 

 

 

 

 



            Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             17 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
 

 

   

12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

 Note  £m £m 

     
Interest receivable and similar income 3  686.7 756.9 
Interest expense and similar charges 3  (196.5) (279.3) 

Net interest income 3  490.2 477.6 

     
Fee and commission income   11.9 11.8 
Net realised gains less losses on investment securities 4  7.7 4.5 
Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments 5  (2.5) 23.5 
Hedge ineffectiveness 5  (6.7) (67.8) 
Other operating income   14.4 11.8 

Non-interest income   24.8 (16.2) 
     

Total income   515.0 461.4 
     
Administrative expenses:       

- Ongoing 6  (106.7) (84.7) 
- Other net expenses 6  (73.4) - 

Provision for customer redress 25  (18.7) (10.3) 
Impairment on loans to customers 12  16.7 80.0 
Net impairment release on investment securities 9  2.1 2.0 
Profit on sale of loans 11  - 15.3 
Loss on repurchase of own liabilities 7  (2.4) (50.3) 

Profit before taxation   332.6 413.4 
     
Taxation  8  (84.0) (84.0) 
     

Profit for the financial year   248.6 329.4 

     
 

The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 

The Company's profit after tax for the financial year was £138.8m (2015: £233.2m).  As permitted by Section 408 of the 
Companies Act 2006, the Company's individual Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes 
have not been presented in these Financial Statements. 

The results above arise from continuing activities. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
 
For the 12 months to 31 March 2016 

 Gross of tax Tax Net of tax 

 £m £m £m 

    
Profit for the financial year 332.6 (84.0) 248.6 

    
Other comprehensive income    

    

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    

Available-for-sale instruments:    

 - net losses recognised in available-for-sale reserve during the year (10.3) 2.0 (8.3) 

 - amounts transferred from available-for-sale reserve and recognised in 
profit during the year 2.1 (0.4) 1.7 

Cash flow hedges:    

 - net losses recognised in cash flow hedge reserve during the year (27.8) 5.7 (22.1) 

 - amounts transferred from cash flow hedge reserve and recognised in 
profit during the year (38.8) 7.9 (30.9) 

 (74.8) 15.2 (59.6) 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    

- retirement benefit remeasurements 134.0 (26.7) 107.3 

 134.0 (26.7) 107.3 

    
Total other comprehensive income 59.2 (11.5) 47.7 

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 391.8 (95.5) 296.3 

 
 
For the 12 months to 31 March 2015 

 Gross of tax Tax Net of tax 
 £m £m £m 

    
Profit for the financial year 413.4 (84.0) 329.4 

    
Other comprehensive income    
    
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    
Available-for-sale instruments:    
 - net gains recognised in available-for-sale reserve during the year 2.4 (0.4) 2.0 
 - amounts transferred from available-for-sale reserve and recognised in 

profit during the year (1.3) 0.2 (1.1) 
Cash flow hedges:    
 - net losses recognised in cash flow hedge reserve during the year (560.1) 227.9 (332.2) 
 - amounts transferred from cash flow hedge reserve and recognised in 

profit during the year 551.5 (224.4) 327.1 

 (7.5) 3.3 (4.2) 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    
- retirement benefit remeasurements 60.7 (12.2) 48.5 

 60.7 (12.2) 48.5 

    
Total other comprehensive income 53.2 (8.9) 44.3 

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 466.6 (92.9) 373.7 
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BALANCE SHEETS 
 
 

  Group Company 

 Note 31 March 31 March  31 March 31 March  
2016 2015  2016 2015  

£m £m  £m £m  

        
Assets        
Balances with the Bank of England 10 2,418.1 1,045.6  2,418.1 1,045.6  
Cash at bank and in hand 10 1,714.5 1,594.9  701.6 652.8  
Investment securities  9 51.0 223.2  51.0 523.7  
Loans to customers 11 24,959.9 27,315.7  24,689.6 26,901.9  
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 11 436.6 414.5  436.6 414.5  
Derivative financial instruments 32(e) 769.9 877.2  333.3 553.2  
Investments in Group undertakings 14 - -     175.0 175.0  
Other assets 16 16.3 22.0  16.3 22.0  
Retirement benefit assets 24 253.1 85.7  253.1 85.7  
Property, plant and equipment 17 16.1 15.7  16.1 15.7  
Intangible assets 18 31.4 37.7  31.4 37.7  
Total assets  30,666.9 31,632.2  29,122.1 30,427.8  

        
Liabilities        
Amounts due to banks 19 553.3 503.6  2.3 9.8  
Other deposits  20 - -     2,473.5 2,928.3  
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 21 20,888.3 20,963.3  20,888.3 20,963.3  
Derivative financial instruments 32(e) 516.0 499.1  516.0 499.1  
Debt securities in issue 22 4,942.8 6,253.8  1,809.2 2,831.4  
Other liabilities 23 87.4 92.5  84.3 90.0  
Current tax liabilities  56.7 57.6  21.7 29.6  
Deferred tax liabilities 15 53.0 31.9  50.5 28.4  
Retirement benefit obligations 24 1.8 9.4  1.8 9.4  
Provisions 25 77.5 24.5  75.2 21.8  
Capital instruments 26 5.1 7.8  5.1 7.8  
Total liabilities  27,181.9 28,443.5  25,927.9 27,418.9  

        
Equity        
Issued capital and reserves attributable to 
 owners of the parent: 

    

 - share capital 27 361.3 361.3  361.3 361.3  
 - reserves 28 251.2 310.8  237.0 297.8  
 - retained earnings  2,872.5 2,516.6  2,595.9 2,349.8  
Share capital and reserves attributable to 
owners of the parent 

 
3,485.0 3,188.7  3,194.2 3,008.9 

 

        
        

Total equity and liabilities   30,666.9 31,632.2  29,122.1 30,427.8  

 
The notes on pages 23 to 80 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 

The Financial Statements on pages 17 to 80 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 May 2016 and signed on its 

behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

Richard Banks Ian Hares 

Chief Executive Officer Finance & Investment Director 
 
 
 
Bradford & Bingley plc is registered in England and Wales under company number 03938288. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
 
For the 12 months to 31 March 2016 

  

 Share 
capital 

£m 

Share 
premium 

reserve 
£m 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m 

Available-
for-sale 
reserve  

£m 

Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve 
£m 

Retained 
earnings 

£m 

Total share 
capital and 

reserves 
£m 

         

At 1 April 2015   361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 56.0 2,516.6 3,188.7 

         

Other comprehensive income/(expense):         
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve  - - - (8.2) - - (8.2) 
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve  - - - - (66.6) - (66.6) 
- retirement benefit remeasurements  - - - - - 134.0 134.0 
- tax effects of the above  - - - 1.6 13.6 (26.7) (11.5) 

Total other comprehensive 
income/(expense) 

 
   

(6.6) (53.0) 107.3 47.7 

Profit for the financial year  - - - - - 248.6 248.6 

Total comprehensive income/(expense)   - - - (6.6) (53.0) 355.9 296.3 

At 31 March 2016  361.3 198.9 29.2 20.1 3.0 2,872.5 3,485.0 

 
 
 
 
For the 12 months to 31 March 2015 

  

 Share 
capital 

£m 

Share 
premium 
reserve 

£m 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m 

Available-
for-sale 
reserve  

£m 

Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve 
£m 

Retained 
earnings 

£m 

Total share 
capital and 

reserves 
£m 

         

At 1 April 2014   361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 61.1 2,138.7 2,815.0 

         
Other comprehensive income/(expense):         
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve  - - - 1.1 - - 1.1 
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve  - - - - (8.6) - (8.6) 
- retirement benefit remeasurements  - - - - - 60.7 60.7 
- tax effects of the above  - - - (0.2) 3.5 (12.2) (8.9) 

Total other comprehensive 
income/(expense) 

 
- - - 0.9 (5.1) 48.5 44.3 

Profit for the financial year  - - - - - 329.4 329.4 

Total comprehensive income/(expense)   - - - 0.9 (5.1) 377.9 373.7 

At 31 March 2015  361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 56.0 2,516.6 3,188.7 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
 
For the 12 months to 31 March 2016 

 

  
Share 

capital 
£m 

Share 
premium 

reserve 
£m 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m 

Available-
for-sale 
reserve  

£m 

Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve 
£m 

Retained 
earnings 

£m 

Total share 
capital and 

reserves 
£m 

        

At 1 April 2015 361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 43.0 2,349.8 3,008.9 

        

Other comprehensive income/(expense):        

- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - (8.2) - - (8.2) 

- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (67.8) - (67.8) 

- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 134.0 134.0 

- tax effects of the above - - - 1.6 13.6 (26.7) (11.5) 

Total other comprehensive 
income/(expense) 

- - - (6.6) (54.2) 107.3 46.5 

Profit for the financial year - - - - - 138.8 138.8 

Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - (6.6) (54.2) 246.1 185.3 

At 31 March 2016 361.3 198.9 29.2 20.1 (11.2) 2,595.9 3,194.2 

 
 

For the 12 months to 31 March 2015 

 

  
Share 
capital 

£m 

Share 
premium 
reserve 

£m 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£m 

Available-
for-sale 
reserve  

£m 

Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve 
£m 

Retained 
earnings 

£m 

Total share 
capital and 

reserves 
£m 

        

At 1 April 2014 361.3 198.9 29.2 25.8 56.9 2,068.1 2,740.2 

        
Other comprehensive income/(expense):        
- net movement in available-for-sale reserve - - - 1.1 - - 1.1 
- net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - (17.4) - (17.4) 
- retirement benefit remeasurements - - - - - 60.7 60.7 
- tax effects of the above - - - (0.2) 3.5 (12.2) (8.9) 

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (13.9) 48.5 35.5 
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 233.2 233.2 

Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - - 0.9 (13.9) 281.7 268.7 

At 31 March 2015 361.3 198.9 29.2 26.7 43.0 2,349.8 3,008.9 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS 

 

 Group Company 

  12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m £m £m 

     
Cash flows from operating activities      
Profit before taxation for the financial year 332.6 413.4 195.4 291.2 
Adjustments to reconcile profit to cash generated 
from/(used in) activities:     
 - profit on sale of loans - (15.3) - (10.3) 
 - provision for customer redress 18.7 10.3 17.8 5.6 
 - provision for restructuring 73.4 - 73.4 - 
 - defined benefit pension scheme credits (2.9) (0.6) (2.9) (0.6) 
 - cash contribution to defined benefit pension  

scheme (38.7) (35.1) (38.7) (35.1) 
 - depreciation and amortisation 21.1 15.7 21.1 15.7 
 - profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - (9.6) - (9.6) 
 - impairment on loans to customers (16.7) (80.0) (3.7) (59.5) 
 - net impairment release on investment securities (2.1) (2.0) (2.1) (2.0) 
 - loss on repurchase of own liabilities 2.4 50.3 2.4 50.3 
 - fair value adjustments on financial instruments (119.3) (317.3) (121.8) (313.9) 
 - other non-cash movements 359.6 (464.4) 220.0 (407.8) 

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating 
activities before changes in operating assets and 
liabilities 628.1 (434.6) 360.9 (476.0) 
     
Net increase/(decrease) in operating assets:     
 - loans to customers 2,372.6 2,090.5 2,216.0 2,491.9 
 - sale of loans - 901.9 - 647.8 
 - derivative financial instruments receivable 107.3 692.4 219.9 549.4 
 - other assets 6.6 17.5 6.6 26.3 
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:     
 - amounts due to banks and other deposits 49.7 (170.7) (462.3) (381.2) 
 - derivative financial instruments payable 16.9 167.2 16.9 167.2 
 - debt securities in issue (512.8) (514.8) (83.6) (138.3) 
 - other liabilities (33.9) (68.8) (33.4) (39.0) 
 - provisions (39.1) (15.6) (37.8) (17.1) 
 Income tax paid (75.3) (69.0) (53.9) (69.0) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 2,520.1 2,596.0 2,149.3 2,762.0 

     
Cash flows from investing activities:     
 - purchases of property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets (15.2) (12.7) (15.2) (12.7) 
 - proceeds from sale of property, plant and 

equipment - 14.5 - 14.5 
 - proceeds from sale and redemption of investment 

securities 181.2 151.8 481.2 151.8 

Net cash generated from investing activities 166.0 153.6 466.0 153.6 

     
Cash flows used in financing activities:     
 - repayment of Working Capital Facility (75.0) (2,439.7) (75.0) (2,439.7) 
 - repurchase of own liabilities (1,119.3) (342.3) (1,119.3) (342.3) 

Net cash used in financing activities (1,194.3) (2,782.0) (1,194.3) (2,782.0) 

     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 1,491.8 (32.4) 1,421.0 133.6 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,640.1 2,672.5 1,698.1 1,564.5 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,131.9 2,640.1 3,119.1 1,698.1 

     
Represented by cash and assets with original 
maturity of three months or less within:     

 - balances with the Bank of England 2,417.5 1,045.3 2,417.5 1,045.3 

 - cash at bank and in hand 1,714.4 1,594.8 701.6 652.8 

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,131.9 2,640.1 3,119.1 1,698.1 
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1.  Principal accounting policies  

 
Bradford & Bingley plc (‘the Company’) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. 

These financial statements were authorised for use by the Directors on 23 May 2016 and will be put to the shareholders for 
approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting to be held on 28 June 2016. 

(a) Statement of compliance  

Both the B&B Company Financial Statements and the Group (comprising B&B and its subsidiaries) Financial Statements 
have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') 
as adopted by the European Union (‘EU’).  IFRS comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) and those prefixed IAS which were issued by the IASB’s predecessor body, along with 
interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) prefixed IFRIC and those prefixed SIC which were 
issued by the IFRIC’s predecessor body. In publishing the Company Financial Statements here, together with the Group 
Financial Statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to 
present its individual Income Statement and related notes. 

For these 2016 Financial Statements, including the 2015 comparative financial information where applicable, the Group and 
Company have adopted the following statements for the first time: 

 The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in December 2013: these changes had no material 
impact on the Group or Company. 

 The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle issued in December 2013: these changes had no material 
impact on the Group or Company. 

For these 2016 Financial Statements the Group and Company have not adopted the following statements; the Group and 
Company are assessing the impacts of these statements on their Financial Statements: 

 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’; in July 2014 the IASB published the final version (excluding macro-hedging), 
replacing most of the requirements of IAS 39.  The IASB intends that IFRS 9 will be effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but the timing of EU endorsement is yet to be determined. IFRS 9 is 
expected to have major implications for the Group and Company, in relation to impairment of loans to customers, 
hedging and which assets are carried at amortised cost and which at fair value. The Group is undertaking an 
assessment of these impacts. 

 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, issued May 2014, effective for periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018, and yet to be endorsed by the EU.  No material impacts are expected for the Group or Company. 

 Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: ‘Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’, issued 
May 2014. The amendments clarify that a revenue-based method is not considered to be an appropriate 
manifestation of consumption.  These amendments are mandatory for the Group and Company Financial 
Statements for the year to 31 March 2017.  No material impacts are expected for the Group or Company. 

 The Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle, issued in September 2014. These changes are mandatory for 
the Group and Company Financial Statements for the year to 31 March 2017.  No material impacts are expected 
for the Group or Company. 

 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, issued January 2016, effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and yet to be 
endorsed by the EU. The Group and Company are assessing the impacts of this statement. 

 Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ relating to ‘Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’, 
issued in January 2016, effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and yet to be endorsed by the 
EU. The Group and Company are assessing the impacts of this statement. 

All other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not considered relevant to, and have no impact 
upon, the Financial Statements of the Group or Company.   
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 
(b) Basis of preparation  

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and using the historical cost convention except: 

(i) the following assets and liabilities are carried at their fair value: 

 derivative financial instruments; and 

 financial instruments categorised under IAS 39 as ‘available-for-sale’; and 

(ii) where fair value hedge accounting has been applied, the carrying value of hedged items has been adjusted to take 
account of the fair value of the risk which has been hedged. 

The validity of the going concern basis of accounting is dependent upon the funding position of the Company.  At the date of 
approval of these Financial Statements the Group is reliant upon the financing facilities and also upon the guarantee 
arrangements provided to the Company by HM Treasury.  Withdrawal of the financing facilities or the guarantee 
arrangements would have a significant impact on the Company’s operations and its ability to continue as a going concern, in 
which case adjustments may have to be made to reduce the carrying value of assets to recoverable amounts and to provide 
for further liabilities that might arise.  At the signing date of these Financial Statements HM Treasury has confirmed its 
intentions to continue to provide funding until at least 1 January 2018.  

The Directors consider that the accounting policies set out in this note are the most appropriate to the Group’s and the 
Company’s circumstances, have been consistently applied to both the Group and the Company in dealing with items which 
are considered material and are supported by reasonable and prudent estimates and judgements.  

The accounting policies have been applied to all periods presented in these Financial Statements and are consistent with 
the accounting policies used by the B&B Group in preparing its Interim Financial Report for the six months ended 30 
September 2015. 

B&B is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA') as a mortgage administration company and the Directors 
believe that B&B has an appropriate and adequate level of capital to support its activities subject to the continuing support of 
HM Treasury. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU-adopted IFRS and with those parts of the Companies 
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.  A summary of accounting policies is set out below.  The 
preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with these accounting policies and generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported values of assets and liabilities at the date 
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Although 
these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amounts, events or actions, actual results ultimately 
may differ from those estimates (see note 2). 

The Directors consider the business to comprise one operating and geographical segment due to the similarity of risks faced 
within its UK-based residential and commercial portfolios. 

The Company includes the assets, liabilities and transactions of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP within its own 
Financial Statements. 
 
(c) Basis of consolidation  

The Group’s Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and 
incorporate on a fully consolidated line-by-line basis the Financial Statements of the Company and those entities (including 
special purpose structures) which are controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).  An investor controls an investee when it 
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the investee.  Where subsidiaries have been acquired during a period, their results are consolidated 
into the Group's Financial Statements from the date control is transferred to the Group.  Where subsidiaries have been 
disposed of, their results are consolidated to the date of disposal.  On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed 
to the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.  Any difference between the consideration given and the fair value 
of the net assets acquired is capitalised as goodwill, which is subject to impairment testing in accordance with IAS 36 
‘Impairment of Assets’.  Where necessary, the Group Financial Statements include adjustments to bring the financial 
statements of subsidiaries into alignment with the accounting policies used by the Group.  All intra-group transactions and 
balances are eliminated on consolidation. 

The Group has securitised various residential mortgage loans, generally by sale or transfer to Special Purpose Vehicles 
(‘SPVs’), which in turn have issued securities to investors.  The SPVs are consolidated line-by-line into the Group Financial 
Statements if they are, in substance, controlled by the Company; all of the Group's SPVs are fully consolidated. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(d) Interest income and expense  

For all interest-bearing financial instruments except derivatives, interest income and expense are recognised in the Income 
Statement on an Effective Interest Rate ('EIR') basis. 

The EIR method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and spreads interest income or interest 
expense on a level yield basis over the expected life of the instrument or an appropriate shorter period. The calculation 
includes all directly attributable incremental fees and costs, premia on acquisition of mortgage portfolios and all other premia 
and discounts as well as interest.  In respect of loans to customers, the elements other than interest are spread over the 
period to which the product reprices to a Standard or Product Variable Rate.  The EIR is the rate which, at the inception of 
the instrument, exactly discounts expected future cash flows over the appropriate period to the initial carrying amount.  
When calculating the EIR, future cash flows are estimated, considering all contractual terms of the instrument (for example 
prepayment options) but potential future credit losses are not considered. 

Interest on derivatives is included in interest income where the derivative is hedging interest income and interest expense 
where the derivative is hedging interest expense. 

When a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets is written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest 
income continues to be recognised by applying the applicable EIR to the reduced balance. 
 

(e) Fee and commission income  

Where Value Added Tax ('VAT') is charged, income is stated net of VAT. 

Commission receivable from the renewal of third party regulated financial services products was recognised as income 
within ‘fee and commission income’ when the renewal policy went ‘on risk’, net of any provision for repayment in the event of 
early termination by the customer.  If the commission is receivable on deferred terms, a deemed interest element of the 
commission is separated and recognised on an EIR basis over the deferred payment period. 

Fees charged to existing borrowers, including arrears and redemption fees, are recognised in fee and commission income 
as they arise. 
 
(f) Bonuses payable  

An accrual is made for all bonuses which have been earned by the Balance Sheet date even though these may not 
subsequently be payable due to clawback or the employee leaving the Group. 
 
(g) Financial instruments  

In accordance with IAS 39 each financial asset is classified at initial recognition into one of four categories: 
(i)   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; 

(ii)  Held-to-maturity; 

(iii)  Loans and receivables; or 

(iv)  Available-for-sale; 

and each financial liability into one of two categories: 

(v)   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or 

(vi)  Other liabilities. 

Measurement of financial instruments is either at amortised cost (categories (ii), (iii) and (vi) above) or at fair value 
(categories (i), (iv) and (v) above), depending on the category of financial instrument. 

Amortised cost is the amount measured at initial recognition adjusted for subsequent principal and other payments, less 
cumulative amortisation calculated using the EIR method; the amortisation is taken to interest income or expense depending 
on whether the instrument is an asset or a liability.  For assets, the amortised cost balance is reduced where appropriate by 
an allowance for amounts which are considered to be impaired or uncollectible. 

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' defines 'fair value' as 'the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date'.  Where an active market is 
considered to exist, fair values are based on quoted prices or lead manager prices.  For instruments which do not have 
active markets, fair value is calculated using present value models, which take individual cash flows together with 
assumptions based on market conditions and credit spreads, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for 
pricing financial instruments.  Interest income and interest expense on instruments carried at fair value are included in the 
Income Statement in ‘interest receivable and similar income’ or ‘interest expense and similar charges’.  Movements in fair 
value are recognised in the ‘unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments’ line in the Income Statement except 
in the case of instruments categorised as ‘available-for-sale’, in which case the fair value movements are taken to the 
‘available-for-sale’ reserve.  On sale or de-recognition of an available-for-sale instrument the accumulated fair value 
movements are transferred from the ‘available-for-sale’ reserve to the ‘net realised gains less losses on investment 
securities’ line of the Income Statement. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(h) Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
(i) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting  

All of the Group’s derivative contracts are used for commercial management of exposures to interest rate risks, foreign 
currency risks and risks arising from forecast transactions. 

For many of the Group's derivative contracts, hedge accounting is applied.  However, in some cases natural offsets apply. 

Each derivative is carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet; as an asset when the fair value is positive and as a liability 
when the fair value is negative.  The fair value of a derivative includes any interest accrued on that derivative.  Changes in 
the fair value of derivatives are charged to the Income Statement; however, by applying the hedge accounting rules set out 
in IAS 39, the changes in fair value of derivatives which are used to hedge particular risks can either be mitigated in the 
Income Statement (fair value hedge accounting) or recognised in other comprehensive income (cash flow hedge 
accounting).  The Group has adopted cash flow hedge accounting and fair value hedge accounting. 

(i)   Cash flow hedge accounting 
A cash flow hedge is used to hedge exposures to variability in cash flows such as variable rate financial assets and 
liabilities.  The effective portion of changes in the derivative fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
recycled to the Income Statement in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss.  The fair value gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement. 

(ii)   Fair value hedge accounting 
A fair value hedge is used to hedge exposures to variability in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, such as fixed 
rate loans.  Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the 
Income Statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the 
hedged risk.  The Group uses fair value hedge accounting on one-to-one relationship and portfolio hedging bases, as 
described below. 

Where hedge accounting is not applied, changes in fair values are recognised immediately in the Income Statement. 

(iii)  One-to-one fair value hedges 
Where one or more specific derivative financial instruments hedge the changes in fair value of a specific asset or liability, 
provided that the hedge arrangement meets the requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as ‘highly effective’, the associated 
hedged item is carried on the Balance Sheet at fair value in respect of the hedged risk.  Fair value gains and losses are 
recognised in the Income Statement, mitigating the fair value movements on the associated derivative financial instruments.  
The Income Statement immediately recognises any hedge accounting ‘ineffectiveness’; that is any difference between the 
fair value movement on the hedging instrument and that on the hedged item. 

(iv)  Portfolio fair value hedges 
Where a group of derivative financial instruments hedges the interest rate exposure of a group of assets or liabilities and the 
hedge meets the requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as ‘highly effective’, the hedge relationship is accounted for in the 
same way as a one-to-one fair value hedge except that the Balance Sheet carrying value of the hedged items is not 
adjusted; instead, the difference between the carrying value and the fair value in respect of the hedged risk is carried on the 
Balance Sheet in ‘fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging’. 

(v)   Hedge effectiveness 
At the inception of each hedging arrangement the relationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged items is 
documented, as well as the risk management objective and strategy.  Also documented is an assessment, both at hedge 
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in the hedging arrangement are 'highly effective' 
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.  Under IAS 39 a hedge is deemed to be 'highly 
effective' if effectiveness is forecast to fall and is actually found to fall, within the 80% to 125% range.  Any hedge 
relationship falling outside these limits is deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting is discontinued. 

(vi)  Termination of hedges 
Where a hedge relationship is terminated or deemed not to be highly effective (other than as a result of the hedged item 
being de-recognised from the Balance Sheet due to sale or other reason), the adjustment relating to the terminated hedge 
relationship is amortised to the Income Statement over the period that the hedged item affects profit and loss.  

(vii)  Embedded derivatives 

Certain financial instruments have derivative features embedded within them. Where the economic characteristics and risks 
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host instrument and where changes in fair value of the 
host instrument are not reflected in the Income Statement, the embedded derivative is separated from the host and carried 
on the Balance Sheet at fair value with gains and losses on the embedded derivative being recognised in the Income 
Statement.  In accordance with IFRIC 9 ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’ the decision as to whether to separate 
and value an embedded derivative is reassessed when, and only when, the terms of the host contract are significantly 
modified. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(j) Sale and repurchase agreements 

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) continue to be reported as they were originally classified within 
the Balance Sheet as the risks and rewards associated with that asset have been retained.  The counterparty liability is 
included in ‘amounts due to banks’ or ‘other deposits’.  Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) are 
recorded as ‘cash at bank and in hand’.  The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and 
accrued over the life of the agreements using the EIR method. 
 
(k) Impairment 

Financial assets which are not held at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed for indications of possible impairment 
throughout the year and at each published Balance Sheet date.  An impairment loss is recognised if, and only if, there is 
objective evidence that a loss event (or events) has occurred after initial recognition and before the Balance Sheet date and 
has a reliably measurable impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.  
Losses that are incurred as a result of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised. 

(i) Financial assets held at amortised cost 

For each asset, an assessment is made as to whether an impairment provision should be made on either an individual or a 
collective basis.  Assets where an individual impairment assessment is made include all loans in possession or held for sale 
with a Law of Property Act ('LPA') receiver and others which management consider to be individually impaired, for example 
where a fraud has been uncovered.  The carrying value of the asset at the Balance Sheet date is reduced by applying an 
impairment allowance to the net present value of the expected future cash flows associated with the asset, calculated at the 
asset’s original EIR.  These cash flows include, where appropriate, estimated amounts recoverable by possession and sale 
of a secured property, taking into account a discount on property value to reflect a forced sale.  

All assets that have been assessed as having no individual impairment are then collectively assessed for impairment, 
grouped by assets with similar characteristics.  Assessment is made of impairment arising due to events which are believed 
to have occurred by the Balance Sheet date but have not yet been reported, taking into account the economic climate in the 
market.  This collective impairment is reflected by reducing the carrying value by applying an impairment allowance. 

Impairment of assets is charged in the Income Statement in the 'impairment on loans to customers' and 'net impairment on 
investment securities' lines. 

For impaired loans to customers, interest is accrued for accounting purposes on the loan amount after any impairment 
adjustments in accordance with IAS 39, using the original EIR of the loan.  However, for the purposes of the amount legally 
due from the borrower, interest continues to accrue on the full outstanding balance and it is this full balance plus full interest 
which is pursued for collection. 

A loan to a customer is written off and any associated impairment allowance released when and only when the property is 
sold or the account is redeemed.  Any subsequent proceeds are recognised on a cash basis and offset against 'impairment 
on loans to customers' in the Income Statement.  An investment security is written off and any associated impairment 
allowance released when there is strong evidence to suggest that nothing will be recovered. 

Where a property has been taken into possession or an LPA receiver has been appointed to collect rental income on the 
property, the loan continues to be carried within 'loans to customers'. 

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Investment securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value, which appropriately reflects any impairment.  
Impairment is recognised when the investment security exhibits objective evidence of impairment or is uncollectible.  Such 
evidence may include: 

 Significant financial difficulty; 

 Payment defaults; 

 Renegotiation of terms due to borrower difficulty; 

 Sustained fall in credit rating or creditworthiness; 

 Significant restructuring; 

 Disappearance of an active market; 

 Significant and sustained fall in market price; or  

 Observable data indicating measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial 
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified within individual assets in the group. 

Movements in the fair value which are a reflection of impairment of the long term value of the investment security are 
charged to ‘net impairment on investment securities’ in the Income Statement.  Impairment losses recognised against 
investment securities are reversed through ‘net impairment on investment securities’ in the Income Statement if the 
improvement relates to an event occurring after the initial impairment was recognised.  An investment security is written off 
and any associated impairment allowance released when there is strong evidence to suggest that nothing will be recovered. 

If there is a sustained increase in the fair value of an investment security where an impairment loss has previously been 
recognised but no improvement can be attributed to a subsequent credit event, then the increase in value may be treated as 
a revaluation and recognised through other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(l) Recognition and de-recognition of assets and liabilities 

Purchases and sales of assets are accounted for once the parties are legally committed to the contract, completion is not 
subject to any material conditions and the risks and rewards of the loans have been transferred. 

A financial asset is de-recognised (ie, removed from the Balance Sheet) only when substantially all of the risks and rewards 
associated with that asset have been transferred to another party. 

A financial liability is de-recognised only when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired. 

In accordance with IFRS 5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations', assets and liabilities are 
classified as 'held for sale' if they are available for immediate sale in their present condition and the sale is considered to be 
'highly probable'. 
 

(m) Debt and equity securities in issue 

Issued securities, including capital instruments, are classified as liabilities where the contractual arrangements result in the 
issuer having an obligation to deliver either cash or another financial asset to the security holder, or to exchange financial 
instruments under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer. Issued securities are classified as equity where 
they meet the definition of equity and confer a residual interest in the issuer’s assets on the holder of the securities. Issued 
securities include ordinary share capital.  

On initial recognition, debt issued is measured at its fair value net of directly attributable issue and transaction costs. 
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the EIR method to amortise attributable issue and transaction costs, 
premia and discounts over the life of the instrument.  These costs are charged along with interest on the debt to ‘interest 
expense and similar charges’.  In the Balance Sheet the carrying value of the instrument includes the amount of these 
adjustments which still remains to be charged to the Income Statement. 

Equity instruments (including share capital) are initially recognised at net proceeds after deducting transaction costs and any 
related income tax. 
 

(n) Foreign currencies 

The presentation and functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group is pounds sterling. 

Transactions which are not denominated in pounds sterling are translated into sterling at the spot rate of exchange on the 
date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities which are not denominated in pounds sterling are translated into 
pounds sterling at the closing rate of exchange at the Balance Sheet date. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the restatement and settlement of such transactions are recognised in the 
Income Statement. 
 

(o) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets comprise capitalised computer software systems and licences. 

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets where it is probable that future benefits will flow 
to the Group.  Thereafter they are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.  Amortisation is provided on a straight line 
basis over their useful economic lives which may be up to five years. Those which have a life expectancy at the outset of 
less than two years are not capitalised but instead their costs are charged to the Income Statement as they arise. 

Costs that are directly associated with developing identifiable computer software systems are capitalised if the criteria in IAS 
38 ‘Intangible Assets’ are satisfied; the main criteria are that the successful completion of the development project is 
reasonably certain and that the software is expected to generate future economic benefits.  Each item of capitalised 
developed computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation; amortisation is provided on a straight line 
basis over its estimated useful life.  Costs that do not qualify for capitalisation or are associated with maintaining software 
are charged to the Income Statement as they arise. 

Intangible assets in the course of construction are not amortised until they have been completed.  The costs of financing 
intangible assets in the course of construction are not included in the costs of the assets.  Intangible assets in the course of 
construction are included in the impairment test referred to below where appropriate. 

All items of intangible assets are reviewed at each published Balance Sheet date for any indication of impairment.  If there is 
indication of impairment, the carrying value is reviewed.  If any impairment is identified, the asset is written down to the 
impaired value being the higher of value in use and estimated net proceeds of sale with the impairment being charged 
immediately to the Income Statement. In addition, the estimated useful lives are also reassessed annually and if they are 
judged to have changed then the rate of amortisation charged in periods after the date of the change reflects the revised 
estimates. 
 
(p) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances which are highly liquid and have an original maturity of three months or less. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(q) Taxation 

(i) Current tax 

The charge for taxation is based on the result for the year and takes into account taxation deferred or accelerated arising 
from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of certain items for taxation and for accounting purposes.  Tax 
relating to items which are taken directly to reserves is also taken directly to reserves. 

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statements.  Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related 
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.  The principal temporary differences arise from 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities including derivative 
contracts, provisions for pensions and other post-retirement benefits, and changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which these 
temporary differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax related to fair value remeasurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are 
recognised in other comprehensive income, is also recognised in other comprehensive income and, subsequently, in the 
consolidated Income Statement together with the associated gain or loss. 
 

(r) Retirement benefits 

The Group operates a number of retirement benefit plans for its employees, including defined contribution plans, defined 
benefit plans and post-retirement healthcare benefits.  The costs of these plans are charged to the 'administrative expenses' 
line of the Income Statement and to other comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' and IFRC 
14 ‘IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their interaction’. 

A defined contribution plan is a pension arrangement where the employer pays fixed contributions into a separate fund.  The 
contributions are charged to the Income Statement when employees have rendered the related services, which is generally 
in the period of contribution.  The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

A defined benefit plan is a pension arrangement that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive 
during retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary.  

A full actuarial valuation of the Group's defined benefit sections of the existing schemes is undertaken every three years, 
with interim reviews in the intervening years; these valuations are updated at each published balance sheet date by qualified 
independent actuaries.  For the purpose of these updates, scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme 
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.  The inflation assumption used to 
determine benefit obligations is CPI.  Details of the actuarial assumptions made are provided in note 24.  The resulting net 
surplus or deficit is included in the Group’s and Company’s Balance Sheet. Retirement benefit remeasurements are charged 
to retained earnings in full in the period in which they occur and pass through other comprehensive income rather than the 
Income Statement.  The Group’s Income Statement includes the current service cost of providing pension benefits, the 
expected return on the scheme’s assets, net of administration costs, and the interest cost on the scheme’s liabilities.  
Following closure of the scheme, the current service cost is nil. 

Though the scheme is in surplus on an accounting basis, it is in deficit on a trustee’s funding basis.  The Group is committed 
to a funding plan to address this deficit.  Surpluses on an accounting basis are only recognised on the Balance Sheet to the 
extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme. The Group 
is considering the potential impact of the IASB’s exposure draft of possible changes to IFRIC14. 

For defined contribution plans, the Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.  Prepaid contributions are recognised as 
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 

Post-retirement healthcare benefits are accounted for in the same way as pension benefits, with the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation being carried as a liability on the Group’s and Company’s Balance Sheets. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(s) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment as appropriate.  
Additions and subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying value or are recognised as a separate asset only 
when they improve the expected future economic benefits to be derived from the asset.  All other expenditure is regarded as 
repairs and maintenance and is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred. Depreciation is 
provided so as to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of each significant component of each item of property, 
plant and equipment over that component’s estimated useful life, as follows: 

 Freehold land is not depreciated 

 Freehold and leasehold buildings 6.7% pa on a straight line basis 

 Motor vehicles 25% pa on a reducing balance basis 

 Computer equipment 20% - 33% pa on a straight line basis 

 Fixtures and fittings 20% pa on a straight line basis 

 Other plant and equipment and major alterations to buildings 10% pa on a straight line basis or over the remaining 
life of the building if shorter 

All items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each published balance sheet date for any indication of 
impairment.  If there is indication of impairment, the carrying value is reviewed.  If any impairment is identified the asset is 
written down to the higher of value in use and estimated net proceeds of sale, with the impairment being charged 
immediately in the Income Statement.  In addition, the estimated useful lives and estimated residual values are also 
reassessed annually and if they are judged to have changed then the rate of depreciation charged in periods after the date 
of the change reflects the revised estimates. 

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they have been completed and transferred to the appropriate 
category of property, plant and equipment.  The costs of financing assets in the course of construction are not included in 
the costs of the assets.  Assets in the course of construction are included within the impairment test referred to above where 
appropriate. 

A previously recognised impairment charge on an asset may be reversed in full or in part where a change in circumstances 
leads to a change in the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount.  The carrying value of the asset will not be 
increased above the carrying value at which it would have been held had the impairment not been recognised. 
 

(t) Leases 

Rentals under operating leases are charged to ‘administrative expenses’ on a straight line basis to the date of change in the 
rental amount.  Typically, operating leases have rent review dates in their terms, several years apart, and between those 
dates the annual rent remains constant.  Any initial rent-free period and any lease premia paid are amortised over the full 
lease period on a straight line basis. 

If a lease agreement in which the Group is a lessee transfers the risks and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as a 
finance lease and the related asset is capitalised.  At inception the asset is recorded at the lower of the present value of the 
minimum lease payments and fair value.  The asset is then depreciated in the same way as an owned asset, over the 
shorter of the useful life and the term of the lease.  The finance element of the lease cost is charged to the Income 
Statement in 'interest expense and similar charges'.  The lease obligations are recorded as borrowings.  If the lease does 
not transfer the risks and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as an operating lease. 

Where an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor 
in compensation is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which termination is made. 

Where the Group/Company leases assets out under an operating lease agreement, the asset is included in the Balance 
Sheet based on the nature of the asset.  Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight line basis. 

Where the Group sells and leases back an asset, provided the sale and the lease are each on arm’s length terms, the two 
elements of the transaction are accounted for separately, with a profit or loss being immediately recognised on the sale. 
 
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when, and only when, the following criteria are all met: 

 there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are released if they no longer meet the above criteria. 

Provisions are discounted to net present value, using rates which reflect the risks specific to the provision, if the effect of 
discounting is material. 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence depends upon the outcome of uncertain future events, or are 
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be reliably measured.  Contingent liabilities are 
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed unless they are remote. 
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1.  Principal accounting policies (continued) 

 

(v) Investment securities held 

Investment securities are categorised either as ‘available-for-sale’ or as ‘loans and receivables’; for each instrument, the 
Directors adopt the category which they consider to be the most appropriate. 

Investment securities categorised as available-for-sale are carried at fair value with movements in fair value, excluding 
impairment provisions, being taken to the available-for-sale reserve.  If an investment security which has been categorised 
as available-for-sale becomes impaired, the impairment is charged to the Income Statement in the ‘net impairment on 
investment securities’ line. 

Investment securities categorised as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any impairment, with any 
impairment being charged to the Income Statement in the ‘net impairment on investment securities’ line. 
 
(w) Investments in Group undertakings 

In the Financial Statements of the Company, investments in Group undertakings are carried at cost less any impairment.  
Investments are reviewed at each published Balance Sheet date for any indication of impairment.  If there is indication of 
impairment of any investment, the carrying value of the investment is reviewed and any impairment identified is charged 
immediately to the Company's Income Statement. 
 
(x) Financial guarantees 

The Group and Company apply insurance accounting to financial guarantee contracts and provide against any claims 
arising under such contracts. 
 
(y) Loan commitments 

Loan commitments are disclosed but are accounted for only if there is an onerous commitment; there were no onerous loan 
commitments in either the current or previous year. The commitment ceases to be disclosed once it is advanced or expires.  
Loan commitments comprise commitments to advance cash sums and to allow drawdown of monies previously overpaid 
(where the terms of the loan specifically allow).  
 
(z) Lifetime mortgages 

The Group has a portfolio of lifetime mortgage loans secured on residential property. Under the terms of the loans, where a 
borrower dies or goes into long term care and a redemption receipt is less than the contractual sum owed the Group does 
not have any further ability to recover amounts from the borrower or the estate. The Group accounts for lifetime loans in the 
same way as other loans to customers, with all income earned being accounted for as interest. The loans are included 
within ‘loans to customers’. In respect of lifetime loans, impairment allowances on loans to customers include an additional 
provision reflecting estimated future impairment up to redemption. 
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2.  Critical judgements and accounting estimates 

 
In preparing the Financial Statements management are required to make a series of judgements and estimates.  
Judgements involve an interpretation of requirements to decide how to allocate, value or recognise an item.  Estimates arise 
from using assumptions which result in a range of possible outcomes.  The most important judgements and estimates used 
in preparing these Financial Statements are described below. 
 
(a) Impairment losses on loans 

The Group reviews its loan impairment on a monthly basis and assesses individual impairment losses by reference to an 
individual review of the underlying asset and utilises actual loss experience to provide both probabilities of defaults and 
property forced sale discounts across a portfolio of products.  Collective impairment losses on loans are calculated using a 
statistical model.  The key assumptions used in this model are: the probability of any balance entering into default as a result 
of an event that had occurred prior to the Balance Sheet date; the probability of this default resulting in possession or write-
off; and the estimated subsequent loss incurred.  These key assumptions are based on observed data trends and are 
updated on a regular basis within agreed methodology to ensure the impairment allowance is entirely representative of the 
current portfolio.  The accuracy of the impairment calculation would, therefore, be affected by unanticipated changes to the 
economic situation and assumptions which differ from actual outcomes.  To the extent that house prices were to change by 
+/- 10%, the residential impairment allowance would be an estimated £18.8m lower (2015: £29.2m) or £23.5m higher (2015: 
£33.5m) respectively. 
 
(b) Provisions 

Provisions are carried in respect of certain known or forecast future expenditure as described in note 25. Where the future 
payment amount is unknown, provisions are set at a level which covers the estimated number of future payments and 
estimated average payment amount.  Provisions are calculated using the best available information but the actual future 
outcomes of items provided for may differ from expectations. 
 
The PPI Provision has been increased by £13.1m following the publication of the Financial Conduct Authority’s (‘FCA’) 
consultation paper CP15/39 ‘Rules and guidance on payment protection insurance complaints’ which proposes the setting of 
a deadline date for complaints in 2018 and providing guidance on the Plevin case. The proposals include an FCA-led 
communications campaign to raise awareness of the deadline to prompt those who intend to complain to act ahead of the 
deadline. If the proposals are agreed we expect higher claims volumes in the run up to the implementation of time-barring 
than we have previously modelled. 
 
(c) Fair value calculations 

For the majority of instruments carried at fair value, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices or lead 
manager prices.  Where these are not available, fair value is calculated using discounted cash flows applying independently 
sourced market parameters including interest rates and currency rates.  Other factors are also considered, such as 
counterparty credit quality and liquidity.  Management must use judgement to arrive at estimates where not all necessary 
data can be externally sourced or where factors specific to the Group’s holdings need to be considered.  The accuracy of the 
fair value calculations may, therefore, be affected by unexpected market movements or variations in actual outcomes when 
compared to estimates and assumptions used for modelling purposes.  For example, if management were to use a 
tightening in the credit spread of 10 basis points, the fair value of derivatives would increase from the reported fair values by 
£20.2m (2015: £17.1m). 
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3.  Net interest income 

 

 
 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2016 

£m 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

£m 

Interest receivable and similar income    
On secured loans  671.0 738.0 
On investment securities and deposits  15.7 18.9 

Total interest receivable and similar income  686.7 756.9 

    
Interest expense and similar charges    
On amounts due to banks and HM Treasury (126.7) (183.9) 
State guarantee fee*  (28.0) (31.2) 
On debt securities and other  (41.8) (64.2) 

Total interest expense and similar charges  (196.5) (279.3) 

    

Net interest income  490.2 477.6 

    
Average balances    
Interest-earning assets ('IEA')  29,745 31,746 
Financed by:    
 - interest-bearing funding  7,991 10,162 
 - interest-free funding**  21,754 21,584 

 

Average rates:  % % 
 - gross yield on IEA  2.31 2.38 
 - cost of interest-bearing funding  (2.11) (2.44) 

Interest spread  0.20 (0.06) 
State guarantee fee*  (0.09) (0.10) 
Contribution of interest-free funding **  1.54 1.66 

Net interest margin on average IEA  1.65 1.50 

    
Average Bank Base Rate  0.50 0.50 
Average 1-month LIBOR  0.51 0.50 
Average 3-month LIBOR  0.58 0.55 
 

*  At the time of the nationalisation of B&B, HM Treasury provided guarantees with regard to certain wholesale borrowings and derivative transactions 
existing at that time.  The amount of this fee is dependent on balances outstanding and hence it is included within 'interest expense and similar 
charges'. The cost of interest-bearing funding is shown excluding the state guarantee fee. 

**  Interest-free funding is calculated as an average over the financial year and includes the Statutory Debt and share capital and reserves. 

 

Total interest receivable and similar income includes interest accrued on individually impaired assets of £7.8m (2015: 
£13.1m). 

 
 
4.  Net realised gains less losses on investment securities 

 
Net realised gains less losses on investment securities recognised in the Income Statement comprised the following: 
 

 12 months to  
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

   
Net realised gains on available-for-sale instruments 7.7 4.5 

Total net realised gains on investment securities 7.7 4.5 

 

 



Notes to the Financial Statements            Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             34 

5.  Unrealised fair value movements on financial instruments and hedge ineffectiveness 

 

 
 

12 months to  
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

Net (loss)/gain in fair value:   
- translation (losses)/gains on underlying instruments (7.3) 12.2 

- fair value movements on derivatives which are economic hedges but are not in 
hedge accounting relationships 

4.8 11.3 

Unrealised fair value movements (2.5) 23.5 

   
Net gains on fair value hedging instruments 34.3 200.2 
Net losses on fair value hedged items attributable to hedged risk (41.0) (216.6) 
Hedge adjustment release  (51.4) 

Net hedge ineffectiveness losses (6.7) (67.8) 

Total  (9.2) (44.3) 
 

Following reassessment of the lifetime mortgage portfolio in 2014/15 there was a release of deferred adjustments pertaining 
to hedged risk, reflecting a proportional reduction in lifetime mortgage balances. 
 
 
6.  Administrative expenses 

 
Employees of B&B provide services to NRAM, UKAR and UKARcs. NRAM, UKAR and UKARcs had no direct employees 
during the years presented. 

The monthly average number of persons employed by B&B during the year was as follows: 
 

 12 months to  
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

For the year Number Number 

Average headcount:   
Full time 1,580 1,710 
Part time 412 411 

Total employed 1,992 2,121 

Total average full time equivalent 1,869 1,993 

 
The full time equivalent is based on the average hours worked by employees in the year.   

The number of persons employed by B&B at the end of the year was as follows: 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 Number Number 

Full time 1,517 1,648 
Part time 395 430 

Total employed 1,912 2,078 

Total full time equivalent headcount 1,793 1,949 
 

Staff numbers include Executive but not Non-Executive Directors.  

In addition to the permanent staff above, the B&B Group had engaged a full time equivalent of 263 temporary staff and 
specialist contractors at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: 155). 
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6.  Administrative expenses (continued) 

 
 12 months to  

31 Mar 2016 
12 months to  
31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

The Group's aggregate costs of permanent staff were as follows:   
Wages and salaries 59.1 58.6 
Social security costs 5.8 5.9 
Defined benefit pension costs (see note 24d) (2.9) (0.6) 
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 24b) 4.1 4.1 
Other retirement benefit costs (see note 24c) 0.4 0.4 

Total staff costs 66.5 68.4 
IT costs 40.9 33.2 
Outsourced and professional services 12.1 14.9 
Depreciation and amortisation (see notes 17 and 18) 21.1 15.7 
Other administrative expenses 27.2 33.3 

 167.8 165.5 
Management recharge to NRAM/UKARcs (61.1) (80.8) 

Ongoing administrative expenses 106.7 84.7 

Other net administrative expenses:   
- transformation costs 73.4 - 

Total administrative expenses 180.1 84.7 

 
The transformation costs of £73.4m (2015: £nil) relate to the ongoing organisational restructure. Further details are provided 
in notes 25 and 37. 

Auditors’ remuneration 

The following costs are included within administrative expenses: 

 12 months to  
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to  
31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 
Fees payable to Company auditors for the statutory audit of the B&B Company 
and Group Financial Statements 0.3 0.2  
Fees payable to Company auditors and their associates for other services:   
 - the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.1  
 - audit-related assurance services 0.2 0.1  

Total 0.6 0.4  

 
Amounts shown in the above analysis are exclusive of VAT. 

No separate disclosure has been provided of fees payable in respect of the Company as the consolidated Financial 
Statements are required to disclose these fees on a consolidated basis as shown in the above table. 

 
 

7.  Loss on repurchase of own liabilities  

 

 

12 months to 31 March 2016 
Subordinated 

liabilities 
Debt securities 

in issue 
Total Income 

Statement losses 

 £m £m £m 

    

Principal amount of liabilities repurchased - 1,012.9 1,012.9 

Amount paid to repurchase liabilities - (1,119.3) (1,119.3) 

Other net gains resulting from the repurchase* - 104.0 104.0 

Loss on repurchase of own liabilities - (2.4) (2.4) 
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7.  Loss on repurchase of own liabilities (continued) 

 

*  The other net gains and losses were principally release of deferred coupons and hedge adjustments, less accelerated amortisation of the 

discounting effect of deferral of coupons and fees. 

 
During the year and previous year, the Company bought back certain Covered Bonds (see note 22). In the previous year, 
the Company bought back certain of its own subordinated liabilities in issue (see note 26). 

 
8.  Taxation 

 

 12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

  The tax charge for the year comprises: £m £m 

Current tax:   
 - on profit for the year (77.9) (75.0) 
 - adjustments in respect of prior periods 3.5 3.7 

Total current tax (74.4) (71.3) 

   
Deferred tax (see note 15):   
 - origination and reversal of temporary differences (9.6) (12.7) 

Total deferred tax (9.6) (12.7) 

Total taxation charge per the Income Statement (84.0) (84.0) 

 
 

The following tax amounts have been (charged)/credited to equity: 12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

Current tax:   
 - relating to available-for-sale investments 1.6 (0.2) 
Deferred tax:   
 - relating to cash flow hedge reserve 13.6 3.5 
 - relating to retirement benefit remeasurements (26.7) (12.2) 

Net (charge)/credit to equity (11.5) (8.9) 

 
There was no foreign tax charged in the year (2015: £nil). 

The tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard 

weighted average rate of UK corporation tax of 20.0% (2015: 21.0%) as follows: 

 
 12 months to 

31 Mar 2016 
12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

Profit before taxation 332.6 413.4 

   
Tax calculated at rate of 20.0% (2015: 21.0%) (66.5) (86.8) 
   
Effects of:   
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes (18.1) (0.6) 
- adjustments in respect of prior periods 0.6 3.4 

Total taxation charge for the year (84.0) (84.0) 

 

The effective tax rate is higher than the statutory rate due to disallowable expenses in relation to PPI customer 

compensation costs following legislation that came into effect on 8 July 2015 and by disallowable restructuring costs. 

 

 

 

 

12 months to 31 March 2015 
Subordinated 

liabilities 
Debt securities in 

issue 
Total Income 

Statement losses 
 £m £m £m 

    
Principal amount of liabilities repurchased 121.6 208.7 330.3 
Amount paid to repurchase liabilities (213.5) (128.8) (342.3) 
Other net gains/(losses) resulting from the repurchase* 41.0 (79.3) (38.3) 

(Loss)/gain on repurchase of own liabilities (50.9) 0.6 (50.3) 
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9.  Investment securities 

 

  Group  Company  

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

     
Available-for-sale securities 51.0 223.2 51.0 223.2 
Investment securities held as loans and 
receivables 

- - - 300.5 

Total 51.0 223.2 51.0 523.7 

 
In the Balance Sheet the carrying values of impaired assets are presented net of the impairment allowances shown in note 
10. 

Net impairment release on investment securities for the year comprised: 
  Group 

 12 months to 12 months to 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m 

Net impairment reversals on available-for-sale securities 2.1 2.0 

Total net impairment release 2.1 2.0 

 
 
(a) Available-for-sale securities 

     

   31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
Group and Company   £m £m 

At fair value:     
- listed   51.0 223.2 

Total   51.0 223.2 

     

     

The movement in available-for-sale securities was as follows:    

      

Group and Company  
  12 months to 

31 Mar 2016 
12 months to  
31 Mar 2015 

   £m £m 

At start of year   223.2 378.3 
Disposals (sales and redemptions)   (181.2) (149.0) 
Exchange differences   9.2 (7.3) 
Net (losses)/ gains on changes in fair value   (0.2) 1.2 

At end of year    51.0 223.2 

 
The net (losses)/gains on changes in fair value include net impairment reversals. 
 
 
(b) Investment securities held as loans and receivables 

  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
  £m £m £m £m 

     
Carrying value - - - 300.5 
Fair value - - - 300.5 

     
Unlisted - - - 300.5 

Total - - - 300.5 

 
These securities were redeemed in July 2015. 
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10.  Wholesale assets 

 
The assets in the following tables are of a wholesale nature as opposed to individual customer assets.  The credit and 
concentration risk characteristics of these portfolios should, therefore, be considered together. 
 

 Group Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
   £m £m £m £m 

     
Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 1,045.6 2,418.1 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand  1,714.5 1,594.9 701.6 652.8 
Investment securities (see note 9) 51.0 223.2 51.0 523.7 

Total  4,183.6 2,863.7 3,170.7 2,222.1 

 
The Group and Company had no collateral or other credit enhancements in respect of these assets. 

Balances with the Bank of England represent cash liquidity held on account which earns Bank Base Rate. 
 

(a) Credit risk 

Impairment is set out in the table below: 
 

Group 

 

Balances with the 
Bank of England 

Cash at bank 
and in hand 

Available-for- 
sale securities Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

     

Neither past due nor impaired 2,418.1 1,714.5 3.6 4,136.2 

Impaired - - 151.2 151.2 

 2,418.1 1,714.5 154.8 4,287.4 

Provisions - - (103.8) (103.8) 

Total  2,418.1 1,714.5 51.0 4,183.6 

 

Group 
 

Balances with the 
Bank of England 

Cash at bank 
and in hand 

Available-for- 
sale securities Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

     
Neither past due nor impaired 1,045.6 1,594.9 125.4 2,765.9 
Impaired - - 251.9 251.9 

 1,045.6 1,594.9 377.3 3,017.8 
Provisions - - (154.1) (154.1) 

Total  1,045.6 1,594.9 223.2 2,863.7 

 

Company 
 

Balances with the 
Bank of England 

Cash at bank 
 and in hand 

Available-for- 
sale securities 

Investment 
securities held 

as loans and 
receivables Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m 

      

Neither past due nor impaired 2,418.1 701.6 3.6 - 3,123.3 

Impaired - - 151.2 - 151.2 

 2,418.1 701.6 154.8 - 3,274.5 

Provisions - - (103.8) - (103.8) 

Total  2,418.1 701.6 51.0 - 3,170.7 

 

 
 
 

Company 
 

Balances with the 
Bank of England 

Cash at bank 
 and in hand 

Available-for-
sale securities 

Investment 
securities held 

as loans and 
receivables Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Neither past due nor impaired 1,045.6 652.8 125.4 300.5 2,124.3 
Impaired - - 251.9 - 251.9 

 1,045.6 652.8 377.3 300.5 2,376.2 
Provisions - - (154.1) - (154.1) 

Total  1,045.6 652.8 223.2 300.5 2,222.1 
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10.  Wholesale assets (continued) 

 
(a) Credit risk (continued) 

The credit quality of wholesale assets by reference to credit ratings is set out in the table below: 
 

 

 
 

Company 

 

 
 AAA AA A BBB to B 

  CCC and      
below 

At 31 March 2016 £m % % % %     % 

       

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - 100 - - - 

Cash at bank and in hand 701.6 - 37 13 50 - 

Investment securities:       

 - available-for-sale securities 51.0 - 3 53 4 40 

 - loans and receivables - - - - - - 

Total investment securities  51.0 - 3 53 4 40 

Total  3,170.7 - 84 4 11 1 

 

Company 
 

 
 AAA AA A BBB to B 

  CCC and      
below 

At 31 March 2015 £m % % % %     % 

       
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - 100 - - - 
Cash at bank and in hand 652.8 - 25 33 42 - 
Investment securities:       
 - available-for-sale securities 223.2 31 3 54 1 11 
 - loans and receivables* 300.5 - 100 - - - 

Total investment securities  523.7 12 59 23 1 5 

Total  2,222.1 3 69 15 12 1 

 

Additional information in respect of impairment of investment securities is provided in note 9. 
 
* These notes are issued by the Company’s subsidiary undertaking Mortgage Express.  The notes are unrated, but as Mortgage Express is 
supported by the Company and the Company has the support of HM Treasury, these notes have been shown in the table above as having 
the same rating as the Bank of England. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 

 

 
 AAA AA A BBB to B 

  CCC and 
      below 

At 31 March 2016 £m % % % %   % 

       

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - 100 - - - 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,714.5 - 73 5 22 - 

Investment securities:       

 - available-for-sale securities 51.0 - 3 53 4 40 

Total  4,183.6 - 89 3 8 - 

Group 
 

 
 AAA AA A BBB to B 

  CCC and 
      below 

At 31 March 2015 £m % % % %   % 

       
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - 100 - - - 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 - 70 13 17 - 
Investment securities:       
 - available-for-sale securities 223.2 31 3 54 1 11 

Total  2,863.7 2 75 12 10 1 
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10.  Wholesale assets (continued) 

 
(b) Concentration risk 

Wholesale assets are analysed by geographical region at their carrying amounts in the tables below: 
 

Group 
UK Europe US 

Other 
countries Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m 

      

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,688.9 25.4 0.2 - 1,714.5 

      

Investment securities:      

 - available-for-sale securities 30.8 10.3 5.9 4.0 51.0 

Total 4,137.8 35.7 6.1 4.0 4,183.6 

 

Group 
UK Europe US 

Other 
countries Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,539.1 15.7 40.1 - 1,594.9 
      
Investment securities:      
 - available-for-sale securities 115.7 93.8 7.2 6.5 223.2 

Total 2,700.4 109.5 47.3 6.5 2,863.7 

 
 

Company 
UK Europe US 

Other 
countries Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m 

      

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 676.0 25.4 0.2 - 701.6 

      

Investment securities:      

 - available-for-sale securities 30.8 10.3 5.9 4.0 51.0 

Total 3,124.9 35.7 6.1 4.0 3,170.7 

 

Company 
UK Europe US 

Other 
countries Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 597.0 15.7 40.1 - 652.8 
      
Investment securities:      
 - available-for-sale securities 115.7 93.8 7.2 6.5 223.2 
 - investment securities held as loans and receivables 300.5 - - - 300.5 

Total investment securities 416.2 93.8 7.2 6.5 523.7 

Total 2,058.8 109.5 47.3 6.5 2,222.1 

 

At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 the Group and Company held no investment securities issued by the governments of 
Portugal, the Republic of Ireland, Italy, Greece or Spain. 
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11.  Loans to customers 

 

  Group   Company  

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015  31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015  

 £m £m  £m £m  

       

Residential mortgages 24,634.6 26,916.1  18,480.8 20,292.6  

Commercial loans 325.3 399.6  325.3 399.6  

Total secured loans 24,959.9 27,315.7  18,806.1 20,692.2  

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - -  5,883.5 6,209.7  

Total 24,959.9 27,315.7  24,689.6 26,901.9  

 
Residential mortgages include all of the Group's buy-to-let loans.  Commercial loans comprise loans secured on commercial 
properties. 

All of the Group's loans to customers are to UK customers. 

Balances include accounting adjustments in respect of provisioning requirements. 

Loans to customers include loans amounting to £15,173.2m (2015: £16,554.4m) for the Group and Company which have 
been sold to bankruptcy remote SPVs whereby substantially all of the risks and rewards of the portfolio are retained by the 
Group/Company.  Accordingly, all of these loans are retained on the Group's/Company's Balance Sheets.  Further details 
are provided in note 22. 

Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging amounting to £436.6m (2015: £414.5m) relate to interest-rate derivatives 
designated in a fair value portfolio hedge relationship. 

 
Loans to customers and redemptions comprise the following product types: 
 

Group Balances  Redemptions Balances  Redemptions 

 At 31 March    
2016 

 
12 months to 

31 Mar 2016 
At 31 March 

2015  
 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

 £m % £m £m % £m 

Residential mortgages       

Buy-to-let 17,052.1 69 (1,373.0) 18,497.7 69 (1,072.2) 

Self Cert 5,040.8 21 (497.1) 5,591.8 21 (427.0) 

Standard and other 2,541.7 10 (301.2) 2,826.6 10 (361.9) 

Total residential mortgages 24,634.6 100 (2,171.3) 26,916.1 100 (1,861.1) 

Residential loans 24,634.6 99 (2,171.3) 26,916.1 99 (1,861.1) 

Commercial loans 325.3 1 (55.0) 399.6 1 (58.6) 

Total 24,959.9 100 (2,226.3) 27,315.7 100 (1,919.7) 

 
Company Balances  Redemptions Balances  Redemptions 

 At 31 March    
2016  

12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

At 31 March 
2015   

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

 £m % £m £m % £m 

Residential mortgages       

Buy-to-let 13,644.2 74 (1,144.9) 14,857.2 

4,27 

73 (867.1) 

Self Cert 3,836.2 21 (388.1) 4,270.8 21 (333.7) 

Standard and other 1,000.4 5 (146.3) 1,164.6 6 (200.5) 

Total residential mortgages 18,480.8 100 (1,679.3) 20,292.6 100 (1,401.3) 

Residential loans 18,480.8 98 (1,679.3) 20,292.6 98 (1,401.3) 

Commercial loans 325.3 2 (55.0) 399.6 2 (58.6) 

Total 18,806.1 100 (1,734.3) 20,692.2 100 (1,459.9) 

 
Redemptions comprise full redemptions, voluntary partial redemptions and cash receipts from possessions but exclude 
overpayments and regular monthly payments. 

At 31 March 2016, 67% (2015: 66%) of the Group's residential mortgage accounts (excluding buy-to-let) held by 36,013 
(2015: 40,667) customers were 'interest only' with 77% (2015: 77%) of these having more than ten years until maturity. 

In October 2014 the Group sold a portfolio of standard mortgages for £1.0bn (Company: £647.8m) realising a profit on sale 
of £15.3m (Company: £10.3m).  This sale is excluded from the redemptions disclosed in the above table. 
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12.  Impairment on loans to customers 

 
Allowances for credit losses against loans to customers have been made as follows: 

 

Group On residential  
mortgages 

On commercial                              
loans Total 

 £m £m £m 

At 1 April 2015 499.5 60.8 560.3 

Movements during the year:    

- write-offs (43.8) - (43.8) 

- loan impairment (credit)/charge (7.2) 15.3 8.1 

Net movements during the year (51.0) 15.3 (35.7) 

At 31 March 2016 448.5 76.1 524.6 

The Income Statement (credit)/charge comprises:    

- loan impairment (credit)/charge (7.2) 15.3 8.1 

- recoveries net of costs (24.8) - (24.8) 

Total Income Statement (credit)/charge (32.0) 15.3 (16.7) 

 

Group On residential  
mortgages 

On commercial                              
loans Total 

 £m £m £m 

At 1 April 2014 602.8 63.0 665.8 

Movements during the year:    

- write-offs (62.7) (1.5) (64.2) 

- loan impairment credit (40.6) (0.7) (41.3) 

Net movements during the year (103.3) (2.2) (105.5) 

At 31 March 2015 499.5 60.8 560.3 

The Income Statement credit comprises:    
- loan impairment credit (40.6) (0.7) (41.3) 

- recoveries net of costs (38.7) - (38.7) 

Total Income Statement credit (79.3) (0.7) (80.0) 

 

Company 
On residential 

mortgages 
On commercial 

loans Total 
 £m £m £m 

At 1 April 2015 253.4 60.8 314.2 

Movements during the year:    

- write-offs (26.3) - (26.3) 

- loan impairment (credit)/charge (8.8) 15.3 6.5 

Net movements during the year (35.1) 15.3 (19.8) 

At 31 March 2016 218.3 76.1 294.4 

The Income Statement (credit)/charge comprises:    

- loan impairment (credit)/charge (8.8) 15.3 6.5 

- recoveries net of costs (10.2) - (10.2) 

Total Income Statement (credit)/charge (19.0) 15.3 (3.7) 

 

Company 
On residential 

mortgages 
On commercial 

loans Total 
 £m £m £m 

At 1 April 2014 327.0 63.0 390.0 

Movements during the year:    

- write-offs (30.6) (1.5) (32.1) 

- loan impairment credit (43.0) (0.7) (43.7) 

Net movements during the year (73.6) (2.2) (75.8) 

At 31 March 2015 253.4 60.8 314.2 

The Income Statement credit comprises:    
- loan impairment credit (43.0) (0.7) (43.7) 

- recoveries net of costs (16.2) - (16.2) 

Total Income Statement credit (59.2) (0.7) (59.9) 

 

In respect of lifetime mortgages the allowances include an additional provision reflecting estimated future impairment up to 

redemption.  In the Balance Sheet the carrying values of loans to customers are presented net of these allowances. 
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers 

 
In respect of loans to residential customers, the Group and Company hold collateral in the form of mortgages over 
residential properties.  The fair value of this collateral was as follows: 
 

  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m £m £m 

     

Neither past due nor impaired 40,379.3 40,113.9 30,964.5 30,870.7 

Past due but not impaired 1,111.8 1,334.5 726.6 888.7 

Impaired 211.4 247.8 123.2 145.8 

Total 41,702.5 41,696.2 31,814.3 31,905.2 

 
If the collateral amount on each individual loan was capped at the amount of the balance outstanding and any surplus of 
collateral values over balances outstanding ignored, the fair value of collateral held would be as follows: 

 
  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m £m £m 

     

Neither past due nor impaired 24,123.0 26,125.9 18,100.0 19,736.6 

Past due but not impaired 740.5 966.2 466.9 618.3 

Impaired 156.0 198.3 88.4 112.6 

Total 25,019.5 27,290.4 18,655.3 20,467.5 

The impaired balances above include the following carrying 
amount of assets in possession, capped at the balance 
outstanding 32.0 42.9 20.2 26.9 

 
The fair value of the collateral is estimated by taking the most recent valuation of the property and adjusting for house price 
inflation or deflation up to the Balance Sheet date. 

The indexed loan to value ('LTV') of residential loan balances, weighted by loan balance, falls into the following ranges: 
 

   Group Company 

   31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 

   % % % % 

To 50%   15.5 9.9 16.3 9.8 

50% to 75%   47.9 39.7 49.9 43.2 

75% to 100%   34.7 45.2 32.4 42.7 

Over 100%   1.9 5.2 1.4 4.3 

Total   100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

 

For the Group, the average indexed LTV based on a simple average is 60.2% (31 Mar 2015: 65.8%) and on a weighted 

average is  68.3% (31 March 2015: 74.1%). 
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued) 

 
Group At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015 

 
Residential 
mortgages 

Commercial 
loans 

Total 
Residential 
mortgages 

Commercial 
loans 

Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Neither past due nor impaired 24,166.1 233.7 24,399.8 26,223.3 304.4 26,527.7 

Past due but not impaired:       

- less than 3 months 496.3 - 496.3 650.3 - 650.3 

- 3 to 6 months 151.1 - 151.1 196.6 - 196.6 

- over 6 months 95.1 - 95.1 129.6 - 129.6 

Impaired 174.5 167.7 342.2 215.8 156.0 371.8 

 25,083.1 401.4 25,484.5 27,415.6 460.4 27,876.0 

Impairment allowances (448.5) (76.1) (524.6) (499.5) (60.8) (560.3) 

Loans to customers net of 
impairment allowances 24,634.6 325.3 24,959.9 26,916.1 399.6 27,315.7 

Impairment allowances:       

- individual 39.4 76.1 115.5 46.1 60.8 106.9 

- collective 409.1 - 409.1 453.4 - 453.4 

Total impairment allowances 448.5 76.1 524.6 499.5 60.8 560.3 

 
Company At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015 

 Residential 
mortgages 

Commercial 
loans 

Total 
Residential 
mortgages 

Commercial 
loans 

Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Neither past due nor impaired 18,131.9 233.7 18,365.6 19,798.1 304.4 20,102.5 

Past due but not impaired:       

- less than 3 months 323.7 - 323.7 427.9 - 427.9 

- 3 to 6 months 90.8 - 90.8 120.8 - 120.8 

- over 6 months 54.5 - 54.5 74.4 - 74.4 

Impaired 98.2 167.7 265.9 124.8 156.0 280.8 

 18,699.1 401.4 19,100.5 20,546.0 460.4 21,006.4 

Impairment allowances (218.3) (76.1) (294.4) (253.4) (60.8) (314.2) 

Loans to customers net of 
impairment allowances 18,480.8 325.3 18,806.1 20,292.6 399.6 20,692.2 

Impairment allowances:       

- individual 21.7 76.1 97.8 23.9 60.8 84.7 

- collective 196.6 - 196.6 229.5 - 229.5 

Total impairment allowances 218.3 76.1 294.4 253.4 60.8 314.2 

 
The above table includes balances within 'neither past due nor impaired' which would have been shown as past due or 
impaired other than due to renegotiation; these were loans where arrears were capitalised during the year.  These loans 
amounted to £0.2m (31 March 2015: £1.1m) for the Group and £nil (31 March 2015: £1.0m) for the Company.  A loan is 
eligible for capitalisation of arrears only once the borrower has complied with stringent terms for a set period. 
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued) 

 
Arrears and possessions on residential mortgages 

Arrears and possessions are monitored for the Group as a whole and also split by type of product. 
 

 
 At 31 March 

2016 
At 31 March 

2015 

Arrears 3 months and over    

Number of cases No. 2,476 3,144 

Proportion of total cases % 1.17 1.37 

Asset value £m 340.2 440.0 

Proportion of book % 1.38 1.64 

Total value of payments overdue £m 10.6 12.5 

Proportion of total book % 0.04 0.05 

    

Possessions    

Number of cases No. 327 381 

Proportion of total cases % 0.16 0.17 

Asset value £m 42.6 54.6 

Proportion of book % 0.17 0.20 

Total value of payments overdue £m 1.8 2.4 

Proportion of total book % 0.01 0.01 

New possessions  No. 844 958 

    

Total arrears 3 months and over and possessions   

Number of cases No. 2,803 3,525 

Proportion of total cases % 1.33 1.54 

Asset value £m 382.8 494.6 

Proportion of book % 1.55 1.84 

Total value of payments overdue £m 12.4 14.9 

Proportion of total book % 0.05 0.06 

    

In respect of all arrears (including those which are less than 3 months in arrears) together with possessions, the total 
value of payments overdue was: 

 

 

 

 

 

Payments overdue    

Total value of payments overdue £m 15.9 19.3 

Proportion of total book % 0.06 0.07 

    

Loan impairment provision    

As % of residential balances % 1.79 1.82 
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13.  Credit quality of loans to customers (continued) 

 
Analysis of residential mortgages 3 months and over in arrears by product 
 

 
 At 31 March 

2016 
At 31 March 

2015 

    

Buy-to-let    

  Number of cases No. 869 1,185 

  Proportion of total cases % 0.58 0.74 

  Asset value £m 115.5 153.1 

  Proportion of book % 0.68 0.83 

  Total value of payments overdue £m 2.9 4.2 

  Proportion of total book % 0.02 0.02 

    

Self Cert    

  Number of cases No. 878 1,048 

  Proportion of total cases % 2.54 2.76 

  Asset value £m 142.6 179.0 

  Proportion of book % 2.83 3.20 

  Total value of payments overdue £m 4.6 4.9 

  Proportion of total book % 0.09 0.09 

    

Standard and other    

  Number of cases No. 729 911 

  Proportion of total cases % 2.74 2.94 

  Asset value £m 82.1 108.0 

  Proportion of book % 3.23 3.82 

  Total value of payments overdue £m 3.1 3.5 

  Proportion of total book % 0.12 0.12 

 
 
14.  Investments in Group undertakings 

 

Company 
12 months to  

31 March 2016 
12 months to  

31 March 2015 
 £m £m 

At start and end of year 175.0 175.0 

 

The Company's principal subsidiary at 31 March 2016 is detailed below. 
 

 
Mortgage Express is a directly held, unlimited company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Class of shares 
held Interest Nature of business 

Country of 
incorporation 
and operation 

     
Mortgage Express Ordinary 100% Mortgage administration UK 
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14.  Investments in Group undertakings (continued) 

 

The following companies are also fully consolidated into the Group Financial Statements; all operate in their country of 
incorporation.  All are wholly-owned. 
 

 Nature of 
business 

Country of 
incorporation Class of shares held 

    
Bradford & Bingley Homeloans Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Bradford & Bingley Investments Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Bradford & Bingley Mortgage Management Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

FFM Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Finance for Mortgages Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

HSMS Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Leamington Mortgage Corporation Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Mortgage Express (No. 2) Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Mortgage Express Holdings Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Scotlife Homeloans (No. 2) Limited Non-trading UK Ordinary 

Silhouette Mortgages Limited  Non-trading UK Ordinary 

 

The Directors consider the value of investments in Group undertakings to be supported by their underlying assets. 

SPVs 

The following entities are SPVs established in connection with the Group's securitisation and secured funding programmes 
(see note 22). The Company has no contractual arrangement or intention to provide additional financial or other support to 
these SPVs. Although the Company has no direct or indirect ownership interest in these entities and no rights to vote or to 
receive dividends, they are regarded as subsidiaries. This is because they are principally engaged in providing a source of 
long-term funding to the Group which, in substance, has the rights to all benefits from the activities of the SPVs. They are, 
therefore, effectively controlled by the Group. The Company is a member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP. 
 

 
Nature of business 

Country of incorporation  
and operation 

   
Aire Valley Funding 1 Limited Holder of interest in loans UK 
Aire Valley Funding 2 Limited Non-trading UK 
Aire Valley Funding 3 plc Non-trading UK 
Aire Valley Holdings Limited Holding company UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2008-1 plc Issue of securitised notes UK 
Aire Valley PECOH Limited Post-enforcement call option holder UK 
Aire Valley Trustee Limited Mortgage trustee Jersey 
Aire Valley Warehousing 1 Limited Non-trading UK 
Aire Valley Warehousing 2 Limited Non-trading UK 
Aire Valley Warehousing 3 Limited Non-trading UK 
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP Mortgage funding UK 
Designated Member No.1 Limited Member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP Jersey 
Designated Member No.2 Limited Member of Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP UK 
Ivybond Holdings Limited Holding company Jersey 

 
Summarised financial information for material SPVs 

Set out below is summarised financial information for each material SPV: 

 
 Debt securities in issue Net assets Profit after tax 

  31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc 480.3 511.5 4.1 3.2 0.9 0.3 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc 306.5 330.4 2.2 1.3 0.9 0.5 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc 1,644.5 1,783.5 15.0 13.8 1.2 (0.1) 
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc 1,096.0 1,118.1 2.2 2.8 (0.6) (0.2) 
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15.  Deferred taxation 

 
The net deferred taxation liability is attributable to the following: 
 
  Assets  Liabilities  Net 

Group 
  

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

Cash flow hedges 2.8 0.1 - (10.9) 2.8 (10.8) 
Accelerated tax depreciation - -   (3.4) (3.1) (3.4) (3.1) 
Available-for-sale reserve and fair value - -   (2.5) (3.5) (2.5) (3.5) 
Employee benefits - -   (49.9) (14.5) (49.9) (14.5) 

 2.8 0.1 (55.8) (32.0) (53.0) (31.9) 
Offset (2.8) (0.1) 2.8 0.1 - -    

Total - -   (53.0) (31.9) (53.0) (31.9) 

 

 
  Assets  Liabilities  Net 

Company 
 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

Cash flow hedges 2.8 0.1 - (10.9) 2.8 (10.8) 
Accelerated tax depreciation - - (3.4) (3.1) (3.4) (3.1) 
Employee benefits - - (49.9) (14.5) (49.9) (14.5) 

 2.8 0.1 (53.3) (28.5) (50.5) (28.4) 
Offset (2.8) (0.1) 2.8 0.1 - - 

Total - - (50.5) (28.4) (50.5) (28.4) 

 

The Group and Company had no deferred tax assets unrecognised at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: £nil). 

The movements in the Group's temporary differences during the current and previous year were as follows: 
 
 
Group 

At 1 April  
2015 

Recognised  
in income 

Recognised  
in equity 

At 31 March 
 2016 

 £m £m £m £m 

Cash flow hedges (10.8) - 13.6 2.8 

Accelerated tax depreciation (3.1) (0.3) - (3.4) 

Available-for-sale reserve and fair value (3.5) (0.6) 1.6 (2.5) 

Employee benefits (14.5) (8.7) (26.7) (49.9) 

Total (31.9) (9.6) (11.5) (53.0) 

 
 

Group 
At 1 April 

2014 
Recognised  

in income 
Recognised 

in equity 
At 31 March 

 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (0.8) 0.8 -    - 
Cash flow hedges (14.3) -  3.5 (10.8) 
Accelerated tax depreciation (2.4) (0.7) -    (3.1) 
Available-for-sale reserve and fair value (5.2) 1.7 -    (3.5) 
Employee benefits 5.3 (7.6) (12.2) (14.5) 
Taxation value of losses carried forward 6.9 (6.9) -    - 

Total (10.5) (12.7) (8.7) (31.9) 
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15.  Deferred taxation (continued) 

 

The movements in the Company's temporary differences during the current and previous year were as follows: 
 

 
Company 

At 1 April  
2015 

Recognised  
in income 

Recognised  
in equity 

At 31 March 
2016 

 £m £m £m £m 

Cash flow hedges (10.8) - 13.6 2.8 

Accelerated tax depreciation (3.1) (0.3) - (3.4) 

Employee benefits (14.5) (8.7) (26.7) (49.9) 

Total (28.4) (9.0) (13.1) (50.5) 

 
 

Company 
At 1 April 

2014 
Recognised 

 in income 
Recognised 

 in equity 
At 31 March 

2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

Changes in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (1.0) 1.0 -     -     
Cash flow hedges (14.3) -    3.5 (10.8) 
Accelerated tax depreciation (2.4) (0.7) -     (3.1) 
Employee benefits 5.3 (7.6) (12.2) (14.5) 

Total (12.4) (7.3) (8.7) (28.4) 

 
 
 
16.  Other assets 

 
  Group  Company 

 At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

     
Prepayments and accrued income 9.1 7.5 9.1 7.5 
Other 7.2 14.5 7.2 14.5 

Total 16.3 22.0 16.3 22.0 

 
Other assets include £2.9m (31 March 2015: £14.2m) due from NRAM. 
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17.  Property, plant and equipment 
 
 

Group and Company 
Land and  
buildings 

Plant, equipment, 
fixtures, fittings 

and vehicles Total 

 £m £m £m 

    
Cost    
At 1 April 2015 6.7 57.4 64.1 

Additions - 6.2 6.2 

Transfer from fellow subsidiary 0.3 1.1 1.4 

Disposals - (27.1) (27.1) 

At 31 March 2016 7.0 37.6 44.6 

    
Depreciation    

At 1 April 2015 4.1 44.3 48.4 

Charged in year 0.9 5.6 6.5 

Transfer from fellow subsidiary 0.1 0.6 0.7 

Disposals - (27.1) (27.1) 

At 31 March 2016 5.1 23.4 28.5 

    
Net book amount:    

At 1 April 2015 2.6 13.1 15.7 

At 31 March 2016 1.9 14.2 16.1 

 
 

Group and Company 
Land and  
buildings 

Plant, equipment, 
fixtures, fittings and 

vehicles Total 
 £m £m £m 

    
Cost    
At 1 April 2014 23.1 70.2 93.3 
Additions - 4.0 4.0 
Disposals (16.4) (16.8) (33.2) 

At 31 March 2015 6.7 57.4 64.1 

    
Depreciation    
At 1 April 2014 15.4 56.7 72.1 
Charged in year 0.2 4.4 4.6 
Disposals (11.5) (16.8) (28.3) 

At 31 March 2015 4.1 44.3 48.4 

    
Net book amount:    
At 1 April 2014 7.7 13.5 21.2 

At 31 March 2015 2.6 13.1 15.7 

 
The land and buildings depreciation charge in 2015/16 includes accelerated depreciation of £0.8m relating to preparation for 
separation of the business. 

At 31 March 2016, work in progress was £nil (2015: £4.0m had been capitalised and not depreciated.) The work in progress 
related to an IT investment programme to simplify existing infrastructure and reduce ongoing costs. 

Sale proceeds from asset disposals were £nil (31 March 2015: £14.5m) resulting in a profit on sale of £nil (31 March 2015: 
£9.6m). 
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18.  Intangible assets 

 

 Group Company 
 £m £m 

   
Cost   
At 1 April 2015 83.9 83.9 

Additions 7.9 7.9 

Transfer from fellow subsidiary 1.2 1.2 

Disposals (0.2) (0.2) 

At 31 March 2016 92.8 92.8 

   
Amortisation   

At 1 April 2015 46.2 46.2 

Charged in year 14.6 14.6 

Transfer from fellow subsidiary 0.8 0.8 

Disposals (0.2) (0.2) 

At 31 March 2016 61.4 61.4 

   
Net book amount:   

At 1 April 2015 37.7 37.7 

At 31 March 2016 31.4 31.4 

   
 
 Group Company 

 £m £m 

   
Cost   
At 1 April 2014 80.9 79.2 
Additions 8.7 8.7 
Disposals (5.7) (4.0) 

At 31 March 2015 83.9 83.9 

   
Amortisation   
At 1 April 2014 40.8 39.1 
Charged in year 11.1 11.1 
Disposals (5.7) (4.0) 

At 31 March 2015 46.2 46.2 

   
Net book amount:   
At 1 April 2014 40.1 40.1 

At 31 March 2015 37.7 37.7 

   
 
Intangible assets comprise capitalised computer software systems and licences. 

At 31 March 2016, work in progress of £0.2m (31 March 2015: £13.8m) has been capitalised and is not being amortised.  
The work in progress relates to an IT investment programme to simplify existing infrastructure and reduce ongoing costs. 

All assets disposed of in the year had already been fully amortised, and no sale proceeds were received, and hence there 
was no profit or loss on the sales. 

 
 

19.  Amounts due to banks 

 
   Group Company 

  At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

Cash collateral received (see note 33) 553.2 503.6 2.2 9.8 
Other 0.1 - 0.1 - 

Total   553.3 503.6 2.3 9.8 
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20.  Other deposits 

 
Company    At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 

   £m £m 

     
Amounts due to securitisation SPVs   2,473.5 2,928.3 

Total     2,473.5 2,928.3 

 

Amounts due to securitisation SPVs represent the beneficial interests held in mortgage portfolios by securitisation SPVs 

(see note 22).  As the mortgage loans do not qualify for de-recognition from the Company's Balance Sheet, the 

securitisation SPVs' beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios are represented by a deemed loan to the Company.  This 

is equivalent in value to the beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios plus associated intra-Group balances directly 

relating to the beneficial interests in the mortgage portfolios.   
 

 

21.  Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 

 
 

Group and Company   At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 
   £m £m 

     

Statutory Debt    18,416.2 18,416.2 
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility    2,472.1 2,547.1 
Total   20,888.3 20,963.3 

 
The Company has an interest-free Statutory Debt of £18,416.2m as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.  This replaced 
the Group's savings-related assets and liabilities which were transferred to Banco Santander Group on 29 September 2008. 
£15,654.5m of the Statutory Debt is owed to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS').  At the time of the 
nationalisation of B&B, the FSCS covered the first £35,000 per depositor; HM Treasury agreed to cover the excess over 
£35,000, amounting to a total of £2,761.7m.  It is expected that the Statutory Debt will be repaid out of the cash flows 
generated by B&B during its wind-down.  These cash flows will principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on 
loans to customers, along with proceeds of asset sales.  The redemption profile of loans to customers is uncertain; many of 
these loans have contractual maturities of 25 years or more from the date of advance but experience has been that most 
loans to customers redeem earlier than their contractual maturity dates.  Consequently, the timing of the repayment of the 
Statutory Debt is uncertain. 

The Company has an interest-bearing Working Capital Facility ('WCF') provided by HM Treasury.  Since 1 August 2011 the 
rate charged has been Bank of England Base Rate + 500bps and prior to that date the rate was Bank of England Base Rate 
+ 150bps. HM Treasury has the option to vary the rate charged. At 31 March 2016 the Company had drawn £2,460.3m (31 
March 2015: £2,535.3m) of this facility; £2,472.1m including accrued interest (31 March 2015: £2,547.1m).  At the signing 
date of these Financial Statements, HM Treasury has confirmed its intentions to continue to fund the Company as a going 
concern and to enable the Company to meet its debts as and when they fall due, until at least 1 January 2018.  HM 
Treasury has indicated that it expects the WCF to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by B&B during its wind-down.  
These cash flows will principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on loans to customers, along with proceeds of 
asset sales.  The redemption profile of loans to customers is uncertain; many of these loans have contractual maturities of 
25 years or more from the date of advance but experience has been that most loans to customers redeem earlier than their 
contractual maturity dates.  Consequently, the timing of the repayment of the WCF is uncertain. 
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22. Debt securities in issue 

 
 Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total 
Group £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2015 3,422.4 2,800.0 31.4 6,253.8 

Repayments (429.2) (83.0) (0.6) (512.8) 

Repurchases - (1,012.9) - (1,012.9) 

Other movements 140.4 75.4 (1.1) 214.7 

At 31 March 2016 3,133.6 1,779.5 29.7 4,942.8 

     

Securitised assets 9,081.0 7,044.4 - 16,125.4 

Reserve fund 380.0 1.2 - 381.2 

 
 Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total 
Group £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2014 3,902.2 3,459.0 177.4 7,538.6 
Repayments (376.5) -     (138.3) (514.8) 
Repurchases -    (208.7) -     (208.7) 
Other movements (103.3) (450.3) (7.7) (561.3) 

At 31 March 2015 3,422.4 2,800.0 31.4 6,253.8 

     

Securitised assets 9,760.4 7,687.2 -     17,447.6 

Reserve fund 380.0 1.4 -     381.4 

 
 Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total 

Company £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2015 -     2,800.0 31.4 2,831.4 

Repayments -     (83.0) (0.6) (83.6) 

Repurchases -     (1,012.9) - (1,012.9) 

Other movements -     75.4 (1.1) 74.3 

At 31 March 2016 -     1,779.5 29.7 1,809.2 

     

Securitised assets -     7,044.4 - 7,044.4 

Reserve fund -     1.2 - 1.2 

 
 Securitised notes Covered Bonds Other Total 

Company £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2014 -     3,459.0 177.4 3,636.4 
Repayments -     -     (138.3) (138.3) 
Repurchases -     (208.7) -     (208.7) 
Other movements -     (450.3) (7.7) (458.0) 

At 31 March 2015 -     2,800.0 31.4 2,831.4 

     

Securitised assets -     7,687.2 -     7,687.2 

Reserve fund -     1.4 -     1.4 

 
Other movements comprise exchange rate movements, accrued interest and hedge accounting adjustments. 

The Group issued debt securities to securitise loans to customers through SPVs and Covered Bonds and also raised 
unsecured medium term funding, the amounts of which are shown above.  Certain of these have been subject to fair value 
hedge designation and the carrying values of these instruments include unamortised adjustments in respect of the notes 
that were hedged. 

HM Treasury has provided guarantees with regard to certain wholesale borrowings of the Company; the Group pays a fee 
for these guarantees as detailed in note 3. 

Securitised assets represent loans to customers which have been used to securitise issued notes, including notes which are 
held by other companies in the UKAR Group, and cash balances. 
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22. Debt securities in issue (continued) 

 
(a) Securitised notes 

The Group's results include the results, assets and liabilities of securitisation SPVs on a line-by-line basis, none of which 
qualify for de-recognition under IAS 39.  Securitised assets are subject to non-recourse finance arrangements.  These 
assets are primarily loans to customers which have been purchased at par from the Company, the purchase being funded 
through the issue by the SPVs of mortgage-backed bonds.  The Company passes to the SPVs cash received in relation to 
the securitised assets.  The SPVs use the cash to service the bonds, retain a margin specified under the terms of the issue 
and return any surplus cash to the Company.  To the extent that the total cash receipts in relation to the securitised assets 
are insufficient to satisfy interest and principal payments in relation to the bonds, the holders of the bonds have no recourse 
against the Group.  Provided that the total cash receipts in relation to the securitised assets are sufficient to satisfy interest 
and principal payments in relation to the bonds, the Company bears the cost of any impairment of the securitised assets.  
While the assets remain securitised, the Group may not use, sell or pledge these assets. 

At 31 March 2016 the SPVs had cash deposits (including accrued interest) amounting to £1,158.5m including collateral 
deposits of £551.1m (2015: £1,004.0m, including collateral deposits of £493.8m).  These deposits (excluding the collateral 
deposits) are restricted in use to the servicing of the debt securities issued by the SPVs and other legal obligations. 

Many of the securitised notes are issued in foreign currencies.  These are translated into sterling at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date.  All issuances in foreign currency are subject to cross-currency swaps that provide the 
amounts of foreign currency required to repay the notes in exchange for an amount of sterling fixed at the issue of the note, 
thereby protecting against foreign exchange risk.  The value of the loans assigned to the bankruptcy-remote SPVs exceeds 
the value of sterling required under the foreign exchange swaps and, therefore, the debt securities in issue are more than 
covered by loan assets allocated for this purpose. 

On 10 May 2012 a Non-Asset Trigger Event (as defined in the Offering Circular) occurred within the Group's Master Trust 
securitisation structure, due to the aggregate current balance of loans comprising the Trust Property falling below the 
minimum trust size of £10.7bn.  The impact of this event is to change the order of priority of the Funding 1 Available 
Principal Receipts.  As a result of the Non-Asset Trigger Event, all principal receipts from customers are allocated to 
Funding 1 and will continue to be so allocated until all holders of Aire Valley residential mortgage-backed securities have 
been repaid in full if sufficient funds are ultimately available.  The principal is then passed to the Issuers based on their 
respective notes outstanding.  Each Issuer then utilises this principal to pay down notes pro-rata and sequentially by class. 
The timing of future redemptions will be dependent on the availability of funds.  
 
(b) Covered Bonds 

Included within loans to customers are £7,044.4m (2015: £7,687.2m) of mortgage advances and other assets which provide 
security to issues of Covered Bonds made by the Company, amounting to £1,779.5m (2015: £2,800.0m).  The Company 
passes to Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP cash received in relation to the securitised assets.  Bradford & Bingley 
Covered Bonds LLP uses cash receipts to service the bonds and returns any surplus cash to the Company.  The Company 
bears the cost of any impairment of the securitised assets.  While the assets remain securitised, the Group may not use, sell 
or pledge these assets.  

Many of the Covered Bonds are issued in foreign currencies. These are translated into sterling at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date.  All issuances in foreign currency are subject to cross-currency swaps that provide the 
amounts of foreign currency required to repay the Bonds in exchange for an amount of sterling fixed at the issue of the 
Bond, thereby protecting against foreign exchange risk.  The value of the loans assigned to the bankruptcy-remote Covered 
Bonds exceeds the value of sterling required under the foreign exchange swaps and, therefore, the Covered Bonds in issue 
are more than covered by loan assets allocated for this purpose. 

During the year and previous year the Company bought back certain Covered Bonds in issue (see note 7). 
 
(c) Other debt securities in issue 

Other debt securities in issue comprise notes issued under the Company's Medium Term Notes programme. 
 
 
23.  Other liabilities 

 

   Group  Company 

  At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 At 31 Mar 2016 At 31 Mar 2015 
  £m £m £m £m 

Accruals and deferred income  55.3 56.3 54.5 55.5 
Other  32.1 36.2 29.8 34.5 
Total  87.4 92.5 84.3 90.0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Notes to the Financial Statements                 Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             55 

24.  Retirement benefit obligations 

 
(a) Defined benefit pension scheme 

The Group operated a defined benefit pension scheme, the Bradford & Bingley Staff Pension Scheme ('the B&B Scheme') 
which is administered by 'the Trustee'.  The Trustee is responsible for ensuring the B&B Scheme meets its Statutory 
Funding Objective which is set by The Pensions Regulator.  The B&B Scheme provided benefits to employees on a final 
salary basis.  On 31 December 2009 the B&B Scheme was closed to future service accrual; all members became deferred 
members and were given the option to join the Group's defined contribution scheme from 1 January 2010.  The normal 
pension age of employees in the principal scheme is 65 for those who left before 6 April 2005 and 60 for the other members. 
In respect of deferred members, deferred pension entitlement increases are calculated by reference to the Consumer Prices 
Index ('CPI'). 

The credit or cost to the Group of funding the B&B Scheme guaranteed benefits varies over time, dependent on market 
conditions and life expectancies.  The credit in the year was £2.9m (31 March 2015: £0.6m credit) and the retirement benefit 
remeasurement gain recognised in other comprehensive income during the year was £125.8m (31 March 2015: £62.2m). 

The assets of the B&B Scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund.  The Trustee of the B&B Scheme has 
passed a resolution for the ultimate refund to B&B of any future surpluses on the B&B Scheme. 

The last agreed formal triennial valuation of the B&B scheme, prepared by the scheme actuaries as at 30 June 2012, 
showed a deficit of £257.2m on a Trustee’s valuation basis. The 30 June 2015 triennial valuation has not yet been finalised. 
A Recovery Plan was agreed between the Company and the Trustee committing the Company to a programme of annual 
deficit reduction payments up to and including June 2019. £38.7m was paid during the year to 31 March 2016 and future 
contributions will increase at a compounding annual rate of 10%. The Recovery Plan will be reassessed following the 
finalisation of the June 2015 formal triennial valuation. 

The Trustee manages the volatility in the value of the B&B Scheme's assets by limiting the exposure to return-seeking 
assets and using liability-driven investment strategies to increase the level of hedging against investment risks.  The two key 
investment risks are interest rate risk and inflation risk relating to the B&B Scheme's obligations.  By holding swaps, fixed 
interest gilts, index-linked gilts and corporate bonds, approximately 71% of the interest rate risk and approximately 73% of 
the inflation risk has been hedged.  The holding of return-seeking assets is close to the target level required to achieve the 
investment return assumed within the deficit recovery plan. 

The B&B Scheme has a written guarantee from HM Treasury that benefits will be paid in full to the members.  

(b) Defined contribution pension scheme 

The Group also operates a defined contribution pension scheme, the UKAR Pension Plan, into which both employees and 
the Group make contributions.  The assets of this scheme are independent from those of the Group.  The Group and 
Company had no liabilities or prepayments associated with this scheme at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: £nil).  The cost 
in the year to the Group of this scheme was £4.1m (2015: £4.1m).  The cost to the Group varies according to the number of 
employees in the Group and their salary levels, but the Group has no risk of being required to provide additional funding to 
the scheme. 

(c) Healthcare scheme 

The Group provides healthcare benefits to some of its pensioners. The healthcare benefits are provided through a scheme 

into which the Group contributes 100% towards the cost of providing the benefits for members who retired before 1 January 

1996 and 50% for members who retired after this date. The value of the Group's obligation is assessed in accordance with 

the advice of a qualified actuary. The cost in the year to the Group of this scheme was £0.4m (2015: £0.4m) and the 

remeasurement gain recognised in the B&B Group's other comprehensive income during the year was £8.1m (2015: gain 

£1.4m).  

 

(d) Defined benefit section of the scheme 

The amounts carried on the Group and Company Balance Sheets are as follows: 
 

 Defined benefit 
pension plan 

Post-retirement 
medical benefits Total 

 31 Mar 
2016 

31 Mar 
2015 

31 Mar 
2016 

31 Mar 
2015 

31 Mar 
2016 

31 Mar 
2015 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Present value of defined benefit 
obligations (839.2) (960.0) (1.8) (9.4) (841.0) (969.4) 
Fair value of defined benefit assets 1,092.3 1,045.7 - - 1,092.3 1,045.7 

Net defined benefit surplus/(liability) 253.1 85.7 (1.8) (9.4) 251.3 76.3 
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24.  Retirement benefit obligations (continued) 

 

(d) Defined benefit section of the scheme (continued) 

The amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement were as follows: 

 Defined benefit 
pension plan 

Post-retirement 
medical benefits Total 

12 months  
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to  31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to  31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to  31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to  31 Mar 

2015 
£m £m £m £m £m £m 

Net interest (income)/expense (2.9) (0.6) 0.4 0.4 (2.5) (0.2) 
Total recognised in the Income Statement (2.9) (0.6) 0.4 0.4 (2.5) (0.2) 

 

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 
 

 Defined benefit 
pension plan 

Post-retirement 
medical benefits Total 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 
£m £m £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 960.0 782.2 9.4 8.0 969.4 790.2 
Interest on defined benefit obligations  32.1 35.6 0.3 0.4 32.4 36.0 
Remeasurements:       
- effect of changes in demographic 

assumptions (25.7) - (0.1) - (25.8) - 
- effect of changes in financial               

assumptions      (55.4) 165.8 - 1.4 (55.4) 167.2 
 - effect of experience adjustments (35.8) - (8.0) - (43.8) - 
Benefits paid from plan (36.0) (23.6) 0.2 (0.4) (35.8) (24.0) 

At end of year 839.2 960.0 1.8 9.4 841.0 969.4 

 
Movements in the fair value of defined benefit assets were as follows: 
 

 
The major categories of defined benefit assets at the end of the year were as follows: 

 

 

 Defined benefit Post-retirement  
pension plan medical benefits Total 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2016 

12 months 
to 31 Mar 

2015 
£m £m £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 1,045.7 769.9 - - 1,045.7 769.9 
Interest income on defined benefit 
assets 

36.0 37.2 - - 36.0 37.2 

Defined benefit company contributions  38.7 35.1 (0.2) 0.4 38.5 35.5 
Remeasurements:       
- return on plan assets (excluding 

interest income) 

8.9 228.0 - - 8.9 228.0 

Administrative expenses paid from 
plan assets 

(1.1) (1.0) - - (1.1) (1.0) 

Benefits paid from plan (35.9) (23.5) 0.2 (0.4) (35.7) (23.9) 
At end of year 1,092.3 1,045.7 - - 1,092.3 1,045.7 

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 

 Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total 
 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Equity instruments 159.3 5.9 165.2 178.1 5.8 183.9 
Property 2.2 36.6 38.8 1.5 37.9 39.4 
Bonds:       

- of which UK 100.3 - 100.3 6.2 213.4 219.6 
- of which overseas 55.3 - 55.3 55.8 - 55.8 

Liability hedging investments 629.3 - 629.3 3.8 523.2 527.0 
Cash and cash equivalents 4.0 99.4 103.4 - 20.0 20.0 

Total 950.4 141.9 1,092.3 245.4 800.3 1,045.7 
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24.  Retirement benefit obligations (continued) 

 
(e) Assumptions 

Summary actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows: 
 

 
 

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 

To determine benefit obligations:   
Discount rate  3.6% 3.4% 
Inflation (RPI) 3.0% 3.1% 
Inflation (CPI) 2.0% 2.3% 
Future pension increases 2.95% 3.0% 
To determine net pension cost:   
Discount rate 3.4% 4.6% 
For post-retirement medical plan:   
Discount rate  3.6% 3.4% 
Medical cost trend for duration of liability 5.5% 5.5% 

 
In determining the expected long-term return on defined benefit assets, the Group considered the current level of expected 
returns on risk-free investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of risk premium associated with the other 
asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns on each asset class. The expected 
return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return 
for the portfolio. 

The table below shows the life expectancy assumptions from age 60: 
 

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 
 Pensioner Non-retired member Pensioner Non-retired member 

Male 28.2 29.6 28.6 30.1 
Female 30.8 32.4 31.4 32.9 

 
(f) Maturity profile of the obligation 

The defined benefit pension scheme has a weighted average maturity of around 21 years. 

(g) Sensitivity 

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the defined benefit pension scheme obligations to three key assumptions: the 
discount rate, the rate of inflation and the mortality assumption: 

 
Assumption  Change in assumption Impact on obligations 

Discount rate  Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 11% 
Inflation  Increase by 0.5% Increase by 9% 
Mortality  Decrease by 1 year Increase by 3% 

 
If the assumptions were to change by the same amount in the opposite direction to those illustrated, the obligations would 
decrease by a similar percentage to those shown in the table in each case. 

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts recognised in staff costs. A one percentage point 
change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects: 
 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m 

Effect on interest cost - 0.1 
Effect on defined benefit obligation 0.2 1.5 

 
 
25.  Provisions 

 

 Customer 
 redress 

Onerous  
contracts Restructuring Total 

Group £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2015 22.5 - 2.0 24.5 

Utilised in the year (10.4) - (28.7) (39.1) 

Charged in the year 18.7 - 73.4 92.1 

At 31 March 2016 30.8 - 46.7 77.5 
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25.  Provisions (continued) 

 

 
 

 Customer 
 redress 

Onerous  
contracts Restructuring Total 

Company £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2015 19.8 - 2.0 21.8 

Utilised in the year (9.1) - (28.7) (37.8) 

Charged in the year 17.8 - 73.4 91.2 

At 31 March 2016 28.5 - 46.7 75.2 

 
 

 Customer 
 redress 

Onerous  
contracts Restructuring Total 

Company £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2014 22.8 0.1 6.4 29.3 
Utilised in the year (12.6) (0.1) (4.4) (17.1) 
Charged in the year 9.6 - - 9.6 

At 31 March 2015 19.8 - 2.0 21.8 

 

UKAR remains committed to doing the right thing for our customers and where we identify issues that have caused 
customer detriment, we will ensure that they are fully remediated. An additional provision of £18.7m has been recognised, of 
which £13.1m relates to an increase in PPI provisions following the publication of the FCA’s consultation paper CP15/39 
’Rules and guidance on payment protection insurance complaints’ which proposes the setting of a deadline date for 
complaints in 2018 and provides guidance in relation to the Plevin case. The proposals include an FCA-led communications 
campaign to raise awareness of the deadline to prompt those who intend to complain to act ahead of the deadline. If the 
proposals are agreed, we expect higher claims volumes in the run up to the implementation of time-barring than we have 
previously modelled. 

All customer redress payments are expected to be processed during the year to 31 March 2017 except for PPI the majority 
of which is expected to be processed by Spring 2018 to align with the expected deadline date in the FCA consultation paper. 

The onerous contracts provision related to empty leasehold premises which, as at the Balance Sheet date, were no longer 
used by the business but were subject to lease agreements. 

The restructuring provision relates primarily to the ongoing organisational restructure. The transfer of our mortgage servicing 
operations to Computershare gives certainty on costs going forward and allows us to focus on the continuing wind down of 
UKAR’s mortgage book and generation of taxpayer value. The expected total costs are £73.4m and include the cost of an 
internal transformation programme to separate the mortgage servicing capability from the asset management functions and 
the cost of transaction advisors. Further details are provided in note 37. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Customer 
 redress 

Onerous  
contracts Restructuring Total 

Group £m £m £m £m 

     
At 1 April 2014 22.8 0.1 6.4 29.3 
Utilised in the year (11.1) (0.1) (4.4) (15.6) 
Charged in the year 10.8 - - 10.8 

At 31 March 2015 22.5 - 2.0 24.5 
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26.  Capital instruments 

 

  At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015 

Group and Company 
Initial 

 interest rate 

Carrying 
amount 

 £m 

 
Principal  

£m 

Carrying 
amount  

£m 

 
Principal  

£m 

      
Dated subordinated notes 7.625% 5.1 5.0 7.8 5.0 

Total  5.1 5.0 7.8 5.0 

 
These capital instruments are denominated in sterling. 

The carrying values of these instruments are measured on an amortised cost basis, as adjusted for hedge accounting 
adjustments 

As detailed in note 7, in 2014/15 the Company bought back certain of its own subordinated liabilities. 

Redemptions of any subordinated liabilities prior to their final maturity date are subject to obtaining prior consent of the FCA.  

The 7.625% dated subordinated notes have no call dates.  Interest is payable annually in February. In February 2016 all 
accrued and unpaid interest was paid, the previous payment having been in February 2009. 

The rights of repayment of holders of subordinated liabilities are subordinated to the claims of other creditors. 
 
27.  Share capital 

 
 

 Group and Company 

Issued and fully paid at 1 April 2014,  
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 

31 Mar 2016 
Number 

31 Mar 2015 
Number 

31 Mar 2016 
£m 

31 Mar 2015 
£m 

Ordinary shares of 25p each 1,445.3m 1,445.3m 361.3 361.3 

 
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Company no longer has authorised capital other than its issued capital. 

The Company has one class of shares: Ordinary shares of 25p each, ranking equally in respect of rights attached to voting, 
dividends and in the event of a winding-up. 

No dividends were declared or paid in the current or previous year on the Company's shares.  No dividends had been 
proposed by the date of approval of these Financial Statements. 
 
28.  Reserves  

  

Reserves comprise the following: Group Group Company Company 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 
     

Share premium reserve 198.9 198.9 198.9 198.9 
Capital redemption reserve 29.2 29.2 29.2 29.2 
Available-for-sale reserve 20.1 26.7 20.1 26.7 
Cash flow hedge reserve 3.0 56.0 (11.2) 43.0 
Total 251.2 310.8 237.0 297.8 

 
The share premium reserve represents the excess of the consideration received for issued shares over the nominal value of 
those shares, net of transaction costs. 

The capital redemption reserve was created on the sale of surplus conversion shares and to maintain the total amount of 
capital when shares were repurchased by the Company. 
 

Available-for-sale reserve Group Group Company Company 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 26.7 25.8 26.7 25.8 
Amounts recognised in equity (8.3) 2.0 (8.3) 2.0 
Amounts transferred to net income 1.7 (1.1) 1.7 (1.1) 
At end of year 20.1 26.7 20.1 26.7 
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28.  Reserves (continued) 

 
The available-for-sale reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on assets classified as available-for-sale. 
 

Cash flow hedge reserve Group Group Company Company 
 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 56.0 61.1 43.0 56.9 
Amounts recognised in equity (22.1) (332.2) (22.1) (334.3) 
Amounts transferred to net income (30.9) 327.1 (32.1) 320.4 
At end of year 3.0 56.0 (11.2) 43.0 

 

The cash flow hedge reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on financial instruments which are effective cash 

flow hedges. 
 
29.  Off-Balance Sheet commitments: commitments payable 

 
Group 
 
At 31 March 2016 

Within one  
year 

In one to  
five years 

Over five  
years Total 

 £m £m £m £m 

Loan commitments:     
 - loans to customers 201.4 -   - 201.4 

Operating lease commitments:     

 - land and buildings 1.4 4.9 4.2 10.5 

Capital commitments 0.8 - - 0.8 

Total 203.6 4.9 4.2 212.7 

 

Group 
 
At 31 March 2015 

Within one  
year 

In one to  
five years 

Over five  
years Total 

 £m £m £m £m 

Loan commitments:     
 - loans to customers 184.3 -   - 184.3 
Operating lease commitments:     
 - land and buildings 1.4 5.0 5.4 11.8 
Capital commitments 5.2 -   - 5.2 

Total 190.9 5.0 5.4 201.3 

 
Company 
 
At 31 March 2016 

Within one  
year 

In one to  
five years 

Over five  
years Total 

  £m £m £m £m 

Loan commitments:      
 - loans to customers  166.8 - - 166.8 

Operating lease commitments:     

 - land and buildings  1.4 4.9 4.2 10.5 

Capital commitments  0.8 - - 0.8 

Total  169.0 4.9 4.2 178.1 

 
Company 
 
At 31 March 2015 

Within one  
year 

In one to  
five years 

Over five  
years Total 

  £m £m £m £m 

Loan commitments:      
 - loans to customers  152.6 - - 152.6 
Operating lease commitments:     
 - land and buildings  1.4 5.0 5.4 11.8 
Capital commitments  5.2 - - 5.2 

Total  159.2 5.0 5.4 169.6 

 

Loan commitments represent contractual amounts to which the Group/Company is committed for extension of credit to 
customers. The commitment comprises cash which could be drawn down by customers in respect of further advances and 
re-drawal of amounts voluntarily overpaid. 

Operating lease commitments represent minimum future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases. 

Capital commitments represent contractual amounts to which the Group/Company is committed in respect of IT 
infrastructure investment. 



Notes to the Financial Statements                 Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             61 

30.  Related party disclosures 

 
(a) Key management personnel 

The Group considers the Board of Directors and the members of the Executive Committee to be the key management 
personnel.  There were no amounts owed to or by key management personnel at any time during the year (2015: £nil). 

A summary of the Group's share of the remuneration of the 15 (2015: 15) key management personnel is set out in the table 
below. These amounts include the Group's share of the remuneration of the Directors which is set out in more detail in the 
Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 31 to 46 of the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts of UKAR. The Directors' 
Remuneration Report gives details of the UKAR Group's Directors' salaries, fees, bonuses, pension benefits, other 
incentives and other benefits. The aggregate UKAR Group emoluments of the UKAR Group's Directors were £2,159,628 
(2015: £1,459,251) and the emoluments of the highest paid Director were £966,611 (2015: £653,227). Included in these 
amounts are £nil (2015: £nil) which the Group paid into the Group's money purchase pension scheme. In addition, Directors 
paid £nil (2015: £nil) into this scheme. In 2015/16 the B&B Group bore half of the cost of the UKAR Directors in its Income 
Statement, the other half being borne by NRAM. Included in the B&B Group's Income Statement, the aggregate Directors' 
emoluments and the emoluments of the highest paid Director amounted to £1,079,814 and £483,306 respectively (2015: 
£729,626 and £326,614 respectively).  The UKAR Group did not make any loss of office payments to Directors during the 
year (2015: £nil).  The key management personnel contributed £45,000 (2015: £42,000) to Group pension schemes during 
the year. 
 

 12 months to 
31 Mar 2016 

12 months to 
31 Mar 2015 

Remuneration of key management personnel £000 £000 

   
Short-term employee benefits 2,101 1,417 
Post-employment benefits 157 150 
Total 2,258 1,567 

 
Further details of the accounting treatment of pensions and of the Group's and Company's transactions and balances with 
the Group's pension schemes are given in note 24. There were no amounts due to or from the schemes at 31 March 2016 
(2015: £nil). 
 
(b) UK government 

As described in note 36, the Company considers the UK government to be its ultimate controlling party. The Group's 
material balances with departments and bodies of the government comprise deposits with the Bank of England (see note 
10), loans from HM Treasury (see note 21) and the Statutory Debt (see note 21). HM Treasury has also provided guarantee 
arrangements to the Group, for which the Group pays fees (see note 3). In addition to these loans and guarantees, the 
Group has balances and transactions with numerous government bodies on an arm's length basis in relation to the payment 
of corporation tax, VAT and employee taxes, and the payment of regulatory fees and levies. The Group has balances and 
transactions with UKFI and with banks over which the UK government has significant influence; these were made in the 
ordinary course of business and are not unusual in their nature or conditions. In the year B&B paid £1.2m (2014: £0.5m) 
relating to advisors to UKFI on UKAR’s future strategy. 
 
(c) Subsidiary companies  

Balances outstanding with subsidiary companies and movements in these loans were as follows: 
 

 Securitisation Other 2016 Securitisation Other 2015 
 SPVs subsidiaries Total SPVs subsidiaries Total 

Receivables £m £m £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 241.8 5,967.9 6,209.7 276.0 6,728.7 7,004.7 
Net movement over the year (31.4) (294.8) (326.2) (34.2) (760.8) (795.0) 
At end of year 210.4 5,673.1 5,883.5 241.8 5,967.9 6,209.7 

       
 Securitisation Other 2016 Securitisation Other 2015 
 SPVs subsidiaries Total SPVs subsidiaries Total 
Payables £m £m £m £m £m £m 

At start of year 2,928.3 - 2,928.3 3,315.1 - 3,315.1 
Net movement over the year (454.8) - (454.8) (386.8) - (386.8) 
At end of year 2,473.5 - 2,473.5 2,928.3 - 2,928.3 

 
The Company held £3,028.0m of loan notes issued by SPV subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 (2015: £3,355.0m). In order to 
avoid recognising the underlying mortgage assets twice, the securities are netted off the Company's liabilities to the 
subsidiaries which issued the securities.   
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30.  Related party disclosures (continued) 

 

(d) Fellow subsidiary 

The Company earned interest income of £0.6m (2015: £0.9m) on notes held by the Company and issued by NRAM. The 
Company held £65.8m of these notes at 31 March 2015; these were all redeemed during the year. NRAM held £33.8m of 
loan notes issued by the Company at 31 March 2016 (2015: £39.4m). The Company's interest expense on these notes 
during the year amounted to £0.3m (2015: £0.4m).  

During the year, the Company recharged a total of £81.3m (2015: £89.1m) to NRAM of which £59.7m (2015: £79.6m) was 
deducted from the Company's ongoing administrative expenses. 

At 31 March 2016 the Company was owed £2.9m by NRAM (2015: £14.2m). 
 

(e) Parent company 

During 2015/16 the Company was charged £0.3m (2015: £0.3m) by UKAR for the services of Non-Executive Directors. The 
Company recharged UKAR £0.5m (2015: £0.5m) in respect of fees and other costs of Non-Executive Directors which were 
paid by B&B on UKAR's behalf. At 31 March 2016 the Company owed £0.1m to UKAR (2015: £0.1m). 
 
 
31.  Capital structure 

 
The Company met its capital requirements in full throughout 2015/16 and 2014/15. B&B is regulated by the FCA as a 
mortgage administration company under the MIPRU regime. MIPRU regulation is applied at individual company level, not at 
B&B Group level. The Board considers core equity, formerly tier 1 capital, to be of pre-eminent importance in the capital 
structure of the business and continues to monitor this closely, in addition to the total level of capital. The Directors believe 
the Company has appropriate and adequate levels of capital to support its activities, subject to the continuing support of HM 
Treasury. While FCA rules require the Company to hold capital in excess of 1% of total Balance Sheet assets plus any 
undrawn commitments, the Board believes it appropriate to hold a higher level of capital and as at 31 March 2016 capital in 
the Company represented 9.4% (31 March 2015: 7.7%) of the Company's assets. 

The table below sets out the Company's regulatory capital resources under MIPRU. 
 

 
The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to maintain capital resources to support the objectives of 
the business, to cover risks inherent in its activities and to ensure compliance with externally imposed capital requirements.  
The capital structure is managed in response to changes in the nature of the Company's activities and economic conditions.   

The Company defines equity and certain other capital instruments as capital. Capital excludes accounting reserves for 
available-for-sale assets and cash flow hedges. The Company's capital adequacy and capital resources are managed and 
monitored in accordance with the regulatory capital rules of the FCA. The Company must at all times monitor and 
demonstrate compliance with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of the FCA. The required capital information is 
filed with the FCA on a quarterly basis. 

The deductions comprise investments in Group undertakings, holdings of investment securities issued by the Company’s 
subsidiary undertakings and intangible assets. 

Company     

At 31 March 
2016 

At 31 March 
2015 

          £m £m 

       
Share capital and reserves     3,194.2 3,008.9 
Available-for-sale reserve adjustments     (20.1) (26.7) 
Cash flow hedge reserve adjustments     11.2 (43.0) 
Net pension adjustment     (253.1) (85.7) 
Less: deductions     (206.4) (512.7) 

Total capital         2,725.8 2,340.8 
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32.  Financial instruments 

 
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value 

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities. Assets are generally 

presented at bid prices, whereas offer prices are used for liabilities. The accounting policy note 1(g) sets out the key 

principles used for estimating the fair values of financial instruments.  Note 32(f) provides some additional information in 

respect of the methodologies used. 
 

Group 

 

 

Available-  
for-sale 

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss 

Loans and 
receivables 

Hedging 
adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value  
At 31 March 2016  £m £m £m £m £m £m  

Financial assets:        

Balances with the Bank of England - - 2,418.1 - 2,418.1 2,418.1  

Cash at bank and in hand - - 1,714.5 - 1,714.5 1,714.5  

Investment securities  51.0 - - - 51.0 51.0  

Loans to customers - - 24,959.9 - 24,959.9 21,990.3  

Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging 

- - - 436.6 436.6 -  

Derivative financial instruments - 769.9 - - 769.9 769.9  

Other financial assets - - 7.2 - 7.2 7.2  

Total financial assets 51.0 769.9 29,099.7 436.6 30,357.2 26,951.0  

 

 

Group 
 

Available- 
for-sale 

Assets at fair 
value through 

profit or loss 
Loans and 

receivables 
Hedging 

adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 

 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m  

Financial assets:        
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,045.6 - 1,045.6 1,045.6  
Cash at bank and in hand - - 1,594.9 - 1,594.9 1,594.9  
Investment securities 223.2 - - - 223.2 223.2  
Loans to customers - - 27,315.7 - 27,315.7 24,565.9  
Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging 

- - - 414.5 414.5 -  

Derivative financial instruments - 877.2 - - 877.2 877.2  
Other financial assets - - 14.5 - 14.5 14.5  

Total financial assets 223.2 877.2 29,970.7 414.5 31,485.6 28,321.3  

 

 

Liabilities at fair 
value through 
 profit or loss 

Liabilities at 
amortised cost 

Hedging 
adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 

 

 £m £m £m £m £m  

Financial liabilities:       
Amounts due to banks - 503.6 - 503.6 503.6  
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,963.3 - 20,963.3 20,963.3  
Derivative financial instruments 499.1 - - 499.1 499.1  
Debt securities in issue - 6,147.4 106.4 6,253.8 6,342.3  
Capital instruments - 7.8 - 7.8 13.0  
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - 87.0 87.0  

Total financial liabilities 499.1 27,709.1 106.4 28,314.6 28,408.3  

 

Liabilities at fair 
value through 
 profit or loss 

Liabilities at 
amortised cost 

Hedging 
adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:      

Amounts due to banks - 553.3 - 553.3 553.3 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,888.3 - 20,888.3 20,888.3 

Derivative financial instruments 516.0 - - 516.0 516.0 

Debt securities in issue - 4,933.6 9.2 4,942.8 4,853.7 

Capital instruments - 5.1 - 5.1 10.3 

Other financial liabilities - 83.3 - 83.3 83.3 

Total financial liabilities 516.0 26,463.6 9.2 26,988.8 26,904.9 
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value (continued) 

 

Company 
 

Available- 
for-sale 

Assets at fair 
value through 
profit or loss 

Loans and 
receivables 

Hedging 
adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:       

Balances with the Bank of England - -  2,418.1 - 2,418.1 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand - - 701.6 - 701.6 701.6 

Investment securities  51.0 - - - 51.0 51.0 

Loans to customers - - 24,689.6 - 24,689.6 22,303.7 

Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging 

- - - 436.6 436.6 - 

Derivative financial instruments - 333.3 - - 333.3 333.3 

Other financial assets - - 7.2 - 7.2 7.2 

Total financial assets 51.0 333.3 27,816.5 436.6 28,637.4 25,814.9 

 

 

Liabilities at fair 
value through 
profit or loss  

Liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 
Hedging 

adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 
 £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:      

Amounts due to banks - 2.3 - 2.3 2.3 

Other deposits - 2,473.5 - 2,473.5 2,473.5 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,888.3 - 20,888.3 20,888.3 

Derivative financial instruments 516.0 - - 516.0 516.0 

Debt securities in issue - 1,800.9 8.3 1,809.2 1,816.7 

Capital instruments - 5.1 - 5.1 10.3 

Other financial liabilities - 80.2 - 80.2 80.2 

Total financial liabilities 516.0 25,250.3 8.3 25,774.6 25,787.3 

 

Company 
 

Available- 
for-sale 

Assets at fair 
value through 

profit or loss 
Loans and 

receivables 
Hedging 

adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:       
Balances with the Bank of England - - 1,045.6 - 1,045.6 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand - - 652.8 - 652.8 652.8 
Investment securities 223.2 - 300.5 - 523.7 523.7 

Loans to customers - - 26,901.9 - 26,901.9 24,659.1 
Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging 

- - - 414.5 414.5 - 

Derivative financial instruments - 553.2 - - 553.2 553.2 
Other financial assets - - 14.5 - 14.5 14.5 

Total financial assets 223.2 553.2 28,915.3 414.5 30,106.2 27,448.9 

 

 
Liabilities at fair 

value through 
profit or loss 

Liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 
Hedging 

adjustments 

Total 
carrying 

value Fair value 
 £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:      
Amounts due to banks - 9.8 - 9.8 9.8 
Other deposits - 2,928.3 - 2,928.3 2,928.3 
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans - 20,963.3 - 20,963.3 20,963.3 
Derivative financial instruments 499.1 - - 499.1 499.1 
Debt securities in issue - 2,723.4 108.0 2,831.4 3,004.8 
Capital instruments - 7.8 - 7.8 13.0 
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - 84.7 84.7 

Total financial liabilities 499.1 26,717.3 108.0 27,324.4 27,503.0 

 

 



Notes to the Financial Statements                 Annual Report & Accounts 2016 
 

 

             65 

32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value (continued) 

No financial assets or liabilities were reclassified during the current or previous year between amortised cost and fair value 
categories. 
 
(b) Interest income and expense on financial instruments that are not at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Group 12 months to 

 31 Mar 2016 
12 months to 
 31 Mar 2015 

 £m £m 

Interest income 738.6 820.8 

Interest expense (282.5) (381.1) 

Net interest income 456.1 439.7 

 
These amounts represent interest income and expense before hedging arrangements. 

(c) Impaired financial assets 

Allowance accounts for credit losses in respect of impairment of loans to customers are detailed in note 12 and in respect of 
investment securities in note 10. No impairment loss has been recognised in respect of any other class of financial asset, 
and no other class of financial asset includes assets that are past due. 
 
(d) De-recognition of financial assets 

Loans to customers which have been securitised are not de-recognised from the Balance Sheet of the originator of the loan 
as the originator retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of the securitised loan (see note 22). 
 
(e) Hedge accounting 

Strategy in using derivative financial instruments 

The Board has authorised the use of derivative instruments for the purpose of supporting the strategic and operational 
business activities of the Group and reducing the risk of loss arising in the Group or Company from changes in interest rates 
and exchange rates. All use of derivative instruments within the Group is to hedge risk exposure and the Group takes no 
trading positions in derivatives. 

The objective when using any derivative instrument is to ensure that the risk-to-reward profile of any transaction is 
optimised. The intention is only to use derivatives to create economically effective hedges. However, IAS 39 requires certain 
tests to be satisfied before hedge accounting is permitted. Consequently not all economic hedges are designated as 
accounting hedges either because natural accounting offsets are expected, or because obtaining hedge accounting would 
be especially onerous. 

(i) Fair value hedges 

The Group designates a number of derivatives as fair value hedges. In particular the Group has three approaches 
establishing relationships for:  

  Hedging the interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk of non-prepayable, foreign currency 
denominated fixed rate assets or liabilities on a one-for-one basis with fixed/floating or floating/fixed cross 
currency interest rate swaps. 

  Hedging the interest rate risk of a single currency portfolio of sterling, US Dollar or Euro non-prepayable fixed 
rate assets/liabilities on a one-for-one basis with vanilla fixed/floating or floating/fixed interest rate swaps. 

  Hedging the interest rate risk of a portfolio of prepayable fixed rate assets with interest rate derivatives. This 
solution is used to establish a macro fair value hedge for derivatives hedging fixed rate mortgages. The Group 
believes this solution is consistent with its policy for hedging fixed rate mortgages on an economic basis. 

(ii) Cash flow hedges 

The Group designates a number of derivatives as cash flow hedges. In particular, the Group adopts the following 
approaches: 

  Using fixed interest rate swaps to hedge floating rate sterling liabilities. 

  To address the volatility generated by floating/floating cross currency swaps, they are placed into cash flow 
hedges; the accounting hedge relationship is to hedge the foreign currency exchange rate risk of the foreign 
currency denominated asset/liability.  

  Fixed/floating cross currency swaps are split into their separate risk components and separately designated into 
cash flow hedges. 

  Basis swaps are split into their separate risk components and separately designated into cash flow hedges. 
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(e) Hedge accounting (continued) 
 

(iii) Net investment hedges 

The Group has not designated any derivatives as net investment hedges in 2015/16 or 2014/15. 

The Group had the following types of hedges: 
 

At 31 March 2016 
 

Fair value 
hedges 

Cash flow 
hedges 

Economic  
hedges 

 
Total 

Notional 
amounts 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Exchange rate contracts - 769.5 0.4 769.9 3,344.7 

Total asset balances - 769.5 0.4 769.9  

      

Exchange rate contracts - - 3.3 3.3 127.9 

Interest rate contracts 499.1 11.7 1.9 512.7 6,945.7 

Total liability balances 499.1 11.7 5.2 516.0  

      
Fair value of hedging instruments (499.1) 757.8 (4.8) 253.9  

 

At 31 March 2015 Fair value 
hedges 

Cash flow 
hedges 

Economic  
hedges 

 
Total 

Notional 
amounts 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Exchange rate contracts - 867.7 9.3 877.0 4,579.7 
Interest rate contracts - 0.2 - 0.2 20.0 

Total asset balances - 867.9 9.3 877.2  

      
Exchange rate contracts - - 2.3 2.3 138.8 
Interest rate contracts 463.4 25.6 7.8 496.8 9,702.1 

Total liability balances 463.4 25.6 10.1 499.1  

      
Fair value of hedging instruments (463.4) 842.3 (0.8) 378.1  

 

The Company had the following types of hedges: 

 

At 31 March 2016 Fair value 
hedges 

Cash flow 
hedges 

Economic  
hedges 

 
Total 

Notional 
amounts 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Exchange rate contracts - 332.9 0.4 333.3 1,536.8 

Total asset balances - 332.9 0.4 333.3  

      

Exchange rate contracts - - 3.3 3.3 127.9 

Interest rate contracts 499.1 11.7 1.9 512.7 6,945.7 

Total liability balances 499.1 11.7 5.2 516.0  

      
Fair value of hedging instruments (499.1) 321.2 (4.8) (182.7)  

 

At 31 March 2015      
 Fair value 

hedges 
Cash flow 

hedges 
Economic  

hedges 
 

Total 
Notional 
amounts 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

      
Exchange rate contracts - 543.7 9.3 553.0 2,530.0 
Interest rate contracts - 0.2 - 0.2 20.0 

Total asset balances - 543.9 9.3 553.2  

      
Exchange rate contracts - - 2.3 2.3 138.8 
Interest rate contracts 463.4 25.6 7.8 496.8 9,702.1 

Total liability balances 463.4 25.6 10.1 499.1  

      
Fair value of hedging instruments (463.4) 518.3 (0.8) 54.1  
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(f) Fair value measurement 

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are valued on the following bases: 

 
Group     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Investment securities - available-for-sale 0.1 50.9 - 51.0 

Derivative financial instruments - 769.9 - 769.9 
     
Financial liabilities:     

Derivative financial instruments - (516.0) - (516.0) 

Net financial assets 0.1 304.8 - 304.9 

 
Group     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Investment securities - available-for-sale 31.8 191.4 - 223.2 
Derivative financial instruments - 877.2 - 877.2 
     
Financial liabilities:     
Derivative financial instruments - (499.1) - (499.1) 

Net financial assets 31.8 569.5 - 601.3 

 
Company     

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Investment securities - available-for-sale 0.1 50.9 - 51.0 

Derivative financial instruments - 333.3 - 333.3 

     
Financial liabilities:     

Derivative financial instruments - (516.0) - (516.0) 

Net financial liabilities 0.1 (131.8) - (131.7) 

 
Company     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Investment securities - available-for-sale 31.8 191.4 - 223.2 
Derivative financial instruments - 553.2 - 553.2 
     
Financial liabilities:     
Derivative financial instruments - (499.1) - (499.1) 

Net financial assets 31.8 245.5 - 277.3 

 
Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, whether directly (i.e. as price) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from the implications of prices). 

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data, or have significant unobservable 
inputs. 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year (2015: none). 

Available-for-sale investment securities which are categorised as Level 1 are valued based on quoted market prices. 

Available-for-sale investment securities which are categorised as Level 2 are those which are less frequently traded, hence 

trade prices cannot always be relied on as sufficient evidence of fair value.  For such securities, fair value is estimated by the 

securities' lead managers, taking into account recent trades, similar assets adjusted for credit spreads and where applicable 

the underlying performance of assets backing the securities (so unobservable inputs are not considered significant).  These 

prices are reviewed against quoted prices where available. 
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) 

Derivative financial instruments which are categorised as Level 2 are those which either: 

(a) Have future cash flows which are on known dates and for which the cash flow amounts are known or calculable by 
reference to observable interest and foreign currency exchange rates; or 

(b) Have future cash flows which are not pre-defined but for which the fair value of the instrument has very low sensitivity to 
unobservable inputs. 

In each case the fair value is calculated by discounting future cash flows using observable market parameters including swap 
rates, interest rates and currency rates. 

For financial assets and liabilities which are not carried at fair value, the fair values disclosed in note 32(a) are calculated on 
the following bases: 
  

  Group     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,714.5 - - 1,714.5 

Loans to customers - - 21,990.3 21,990.3 

Other financial assets - 7.2 - 7.2 

 4,132.6 7.2 21,990.3 26,130.1 
     

Financial liabilities:     

Amounts due to banks 553.3 - - 553.3 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,888.3 - - 20,888.3 

Debt securities in issue - 4,853.7 - 4,853.7 

Capital instruments - 10.3 - 10.3 

Other financial liabilities - 83.3 - 83.3 

 21,441.6 4,947.3 - 26,388.9 

     
  Group     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,594.9 - - 1,594.9 
Loans to customers - - 24,565.9 24,565.9 
Other financial assets - 14.5 - 14.5 

 2,640.5 14.5 24,565.9 27,220.9 
     

Financial liabilities:     
Amounts due to banks 503.6 -   - 503.6 
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,963.3 -   - 20,963.3 
Debt securities in issue - 6,342.3 - 6,342.3 
Capital instruments - 13.0 - 13.0 
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - 87.0 

 21,466.9 6,442.3 - 27,909.2 

 

  Company     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 701.6 - - 701.6 

Loans to customers - - 22,303.7 22,303.7 

Other financial assets - 7.2 - 7.2 

 3,119.7 7.2 22,303.7 25,430.6 
     

Financial liabilities:     

Amounts due to banks 2.3 - - 2.3 

Other deposits 2,473.5 - - 2,473.5 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,888.3 - - 20,888.3 

Debt securities in issue - 1,816.7 - 1,816.7 

Capital instruments - 10.3 - 10.3 

Other financial liabilities - 80.2 - 80.2 

 23,364.1 1,907.2 - 25,271.3 
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) 

 
  Company     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.6 - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 652.8 - - 652.8 
Investment securities 300.5 - - 300.5 
Loans to customers - - 24,659.1 24,659.1 
Other financial assets - 14.5 - 14.5 

 1,998.9 14.5 24,659.1 26,672.5 
     

Financial liabilities:     
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - 9.8 
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - 2,928.3 
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,963.3 - - 20,963.3 
Debt securities in issue - 3,004.8 - 3,004.8 
Capital instruments - 13.0 - 13.0 
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - 84.7 

 23,901.4 3,102.5 - 27,003.9 

 
Valuation methods for calculations of fair values in the table above are as follows: 
 
Balances with the Bank of England 

Fair value approximates to carrying value because they have minimal credit losses and are either short term in nature or 
reprice frequently. 

Cash at bank and in hand 

Fair value is estimated by using discounted cash flows applying either market rates where practicable or rates offered by 
other financial institutions for accounts with similar characteristics. The fair value of floating rate placements, fixed rate 
placements with less than six months to maturity and overnight deposits is their carrying amount. 

Investment securities held as loans and receivables 

Fair values are based on quoted prices where available or by using discounted cash flows applying independently sourced 
market parameters including interest rates and currency rates. 

Loans to customers 

Loans to customers include loans of varying rates and maturities. Fair value is estimated by discounting expected future 
cash flows using market interest rates. Expected future cash flows take account of estimated future losses. Market interest 
rates are based on current lending activity in the mortgage market. In respect of the majority of the Group's fixed interest rate 
loans, the change in interest rates since inception means that their fair value can vary significantly from their carrying value; 
however, as the Group's policy is to hedge fixed rate loans in respect of interest rate risk, the Group has no material 
exposure to this difference in fair value.  

Amounts due to banks and other deposits 

Fair values of deposit liabilities repayable on demand or with variable interest rates are considered to approximate to 
carrying value. The fair value of fixed interest deposits with less than six months to maturity is estimated to be their carrying 
amount. The fair value of all other deposit liabilities is estimated using discounted cash flows, applying independently 
sourced market parameters including interest rates and currency rates. 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 

The fair value is estimated to be the carrying amount as the interest rate charged varies in line with changes in market rates, 
and the loans are considered to be repayable on demand subject to timing of repayment of loans to customers. 

Debt securities in issue and capital instruments 

Fair values are based on quoted prices or lead manager prices where available or by using discounted cash flows, applying 
independently sourced market parameters including interest rates and currency rates. 

Other financial assets and liabilities 

Fair value approximates to carrying value because the balances are short term in nature. 
 

(g) Transferred financial assets 

As set out in note 22, the Group/Company has transferred financial assets (loans and receivables) to securitisation 
structures. The Group/Company retains all of the risks and rewards associated with these loans and they are, therefore, 
retained on the Group's/Company's Balance Sheets. 
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32.  Financial instruments (continued) 

 

(g) Transferred financial assets (continued) 

The table below sets out the carrying values of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities. For securitisation 
structures, the associated liabilities represent the external notes in issue (see note 22). None of these notes have recourse 
to the transferred assets. 
 

 Group and Company Group 
   
At 31 March 2016 Transferred assets Associated liabilities 
 Carrying amount Carrying amount 
 £m £m 
   
Loans to customers securitised 15,946.0 4,913.1 

 
 Group and Company Group 
   
At 31 March 2015 Transferred assets Associated liabilities 
 Carrying amount Carrying amount 
 £m £m 
   
Loans to customers securitised 17,241.1 6,222.4 

 
(h) Offsetting 

No financial assets have been offset against financial liabilities. Balances which are subject to enforceable master netting 
arrangements or similar agreements are as follows: 
 

Group 
 
At 31 March 2016 

Gross and net amounts as 
reported on the Balance 

Sheet 

Amounts available to be offset (but 
not offset on the Balance Sheet) 

Net amounts 
after offsetting 

under IFRS 7 
  Master netting 

arrangements 
Financial 
collateral 

 

 £m £m £m £m 

Derivative financial assets 769.9 (3.1) (538.7) 228.1 

Derivative financial liabilities (516.0) 3.1 510.7 (2.2) 

 253.9 - (28.0) 225.9 

 

Group 
 
At 31 March 2015 

Gross and net amounts as 
reported on the Balance 

Sheet 

Amounts available to be offset (but 
not offset on the Balance Sheet) 

Net amounts 
after offsetting 
under IFRS 7 

  Master netting 
arrangements 

Financial 
collateral 

 

 £m £m £m £m 

Derivative financial assets 877.2 (0.3) (425.3) 451.6 
Derivative financial liabilities (499.1) 0.3 494.3 (4.5) 

 378.1 - 69.0 447.1 

 
 

Company 
 
At 31 March 2016 

Gross and net amounts as 
reported on the Balance 

Sheet 

Amounts available to be offset (but 
not offset on the Balance Sheet) 

Net amounts 
after offsetting 

under IFRS 7 
  Master netting 

arrangements 
Financial 
collateral 

 

 £m £m £m £m 

Derivative financial assets 333.3 (3.1) (104.3) 225.9 
Derivative financial liabilities (516.0) 3.1 510.7 (2.2) 

 (182.7) - 406.4 223.7 

 

Company 
 
At 31 March 2015 

 

Gross and net amounts as 
reported on the Balance 

Sheet 

Amounts available to be offset (but 
not offset on the Balance Sheet) 

Net amounts 
after offsetting 
under IFRS 7 

  Master netting 
arrangements 

Financial 
collateral 

 

 £m £m £m £m 

Derivative financial assets 553.2 (0.3) (101.3) 451.6 
Derivative financial liabilities (499.1) 0.3 494.3 (4.5) 

 54.1 - 393.0 447.1 
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33.  Collateral pledged and received 

 

  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

     
Cash collateral which the Group/Company has provided in 
respect of derivative contracts 

511.8 498.0 511.8 498.0 

Total collateral pledged 511.8 498.0 511.8 498.0 

 
  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

     
Cash collateral which the Group/Company has received in 
respect of derivative contracts 

553.2 503.6 2.2 9.8 

Securities collateral held 196.7 130.8 196.7 130.8 

Total collateral received 749.9 634.4 198.9 140.6 

 
In addition to the collateral amounts shown above, certain loans to customers provide security in respect of securitised note 
and Covered Bond funding as detailed in note 22. These loans, and also cash collateral pledged shown above, are carried 
on the Balance Sheet. The liability to repay the cash collateral received is included within amounts due to banks in the 
Balance Sheet. In the absence of counterparty default, the Group/Company has no right to sell or re-pledge the securities 
collateral received, and, therefore, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 such securities are not recognised on the 
Balance Sheet. 
 
 
34.  Financial risk management 

 
A description of the principal risks to which the Group is exposed is provided on pages 8 to 10 which form an integral part 
of the audited Financial Statements. 
 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss caused by a party failing to meet an obligation as it becomes due. The Group 
considers its most significant credit risk to be the exposure to retail, commercial and wholesale counterparties failing to meet 
their obligations. As credit risk is the main risk to the Group, a credit risk framework has been established as part of the 
overall governance framework to measure, mitigate and manage credit risk within risk appetite. The Group closely monitors 
its credit risk against the Board's credit policies. 
 

The maximum credit risk exposure at the Balance Sheet date before taking account of any collateral netting and other credit 
enhancements was as follows: 
 

  Group  Company 

 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015 
 £m £m £m £m 

On Balance Sheet:     
Balances with the Bank of England 2,418.1 1,045.6 2,418.1 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,714.5 1,594.9 701.6 652.8 
Investment securities  51.0 223.2 51.0 523.7 
Loans to customers 24,959.9 27,315.7 24,689.6 26,901.9 
Derivative financial instruments 769.9 877.2 333.3 553.2 
Other financial assets 7.2 14.5 7.2 14.5 
Total on Balance Sheet 29,920.6 31,071.1 28,200.8 29,691.7 

Off Balance Sheet:     
Loan commitments (see note 29) 201.4 184.3 166.8 152.6 

 
Loans to customers are secured on property. 

Additional information in respect of credit risk is provided in note 10 (for wholesale assets) and note 13 (for loans to 
customers). 

The Board has approved a framework for maximum wholesale credit counterparty limits against which total wholesale credit 
exposures are continually monitored and controlled. The credit limit structure adopts a risk based matrix whereby lower 
rated counterparties are afforded lower overall levels of limit. Although publicly available ratings produced by rating agencies 
provide a useful guide to the creditworthiness of counterparties, an internal evaluation is also used in the limit assignment 
process.  Counterparties are assigned maximum limits in accordance with the ratings matrix, based on the lowest rating 
afforded to any part of the counterparty group. 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 

(a) Credit risk (continued) 

For derivative financial instruments the Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit risk, including internal control 
policies, obtaining collateral, using master netting agreements and other credit risk transfers. Derivative transactions with 
wholesale counterparties are typically collateralised, in the form of cash or highly liquid securities, under a Credit Support 
Annex in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement. All outstanding positions are held with wholesale counterparties with 
at a minimum of a BBB+ credit rating. 
 

Concentration risk  

The Group has investments in a range of investment securities issued by government bodies and banks, and in asset-
backed securities, in both the UK and overseas. At 31 March 2016 the Group held no UK government securities, bank or 
supranational bonds (31 March 2015: 14% of investment securities held). 64% (2015: 73%) of the asset-backed securities 
are backed by UK assets.  Further details in respect of concentrations in the wholesale assets portfolio are given in note 10. 

The Group operates primarily in the UK, and adverse changes to the UK economy could impact all areas of the Group’s 
business. Residential loans to customers are all secured on property in the UK. 69% (2015: 69%) of residential loans to 
customers are concentrated in the buy-to-let market; most of the remaining balances are secured on residential owner-
occupied properties. 

The residential loan book of £24.6bn (2015: £26.9bn) is geographically spread across the UK broadly in line with the 
country’s housing stock. Consequently, there is a geographic concentration of mortgages secured on properties in London 
and the South-East representing 48% (2015: 49%) of the book. 

Within the commercial mortgage portfolio, there are 23 loans (2015: 29) totalling £325.3m (2015: £399.6), with the largest 10 
loans accounting for 99% (2015: 86%) of the portfolio. All of these loans are secured on commercial and housing 
association properties. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

The Group and Company closely monitor their liquidity position against the Board’s liquidity policy. Minimum and target 
liquidity levels are established through stress testing and cash flow forecasting, taking into consideration an assessment of 
any emerging and potentially extreme funding conditions. 
  
The table below analyses the Group's and Company's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings: 
 
 Group 

On 

demand 

Within 

three 

months 

After 
three months 

but within 

six months 

After 
six months 
but within 

one year 

After 
one year 

but within 

five years 

After 

five years Total 

 
 
 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:        
Balances with the Bank of England 2,417.5 0.6 - - - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 1,688.9 25.6 - - - - 1,714.5 

Investment securities  - 0.1 20.9 - - 30.0 51.0 

Loans to customers 112.2 115.1 130.3 289.6 1,981.3 22,331.4 24,959.9 

Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging 

- 0.8 0.8 1.6 6.0 427.4 436.6 

Derivative financial instruments - 328.6 - - - 441.3 769.9 

Other financial assets - 7.2 - - - - 7.2 

Total financial assets 4,218.6 478.0 152.0 291.2 1,987.3 23,230.1 30,357.2 

Financial liabilities:        

Amounts due to banks 553.3 - - - - - 553.3 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,876.5 11.8 - - - - 20,888.3 

Derivative financial instruments - 0.3 1.9 2.7 6.6 504.5 516.0 

Debt securities in issue 1.6 1,896.5 112.1 216.7 1,777.0 938.9 4,942.8 

Capital instruments - - - 0.1 - 5.0 5.1 

Other financial liabilities - 83.3 - - - - 83.3 

Total financial liabilities 21,431.4 1,991.9 114.0 219.5 1,783.6 1,448.4 26,988.8 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) 

 
 Group 

On 

demand 

Within 

three 

months 

After 
three months 

but within 

six months 

After 
six months 
but within 

one year 

After 
one year 

but within 

five years 

After 

five years Total 

 

 
 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:        
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.3 0.3 - - - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 1,564.4 30.5 - - - - 1,594.9 
Investment securities  - 31.7 17.9 26.4 23.0 124.2 223.2 
Loans to customers 96.4 68.3 77.6 297.9 2,117.7 24,657.8 27,315.7 
Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging  

- 0.4 0.4 0.8 3.5 409.4 414.5 

Derivative financial instruments - 1.9 38.1 - 501.9 335.3 877.2 
Other financial assets - 14.5 - - - - 14.5 

Total financial assets 2,706.1 147.6 134.0 325.1 2,646.1 25,526.7 31,485.6 

Financial liabilities:        
Amounts due to banks 503.6 - - - - - 503.6 
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3 
Derivative financial instruments - 3.6 0.2 5.3 23.5 466.5 499.1 
Debt securities in issue 2.5 176.9 190.5 208.7 4,100.0 1,575.2 6,253.8 
Capital instruments - - - - - 7.8 7.8 
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - - - - 87.0 

Total financial liabilities 21,457.6 279.3 190.7 214.0 4,123.5 2,049.5 28,314.6 

 

Company 

On 

demand 

Within 

three 

months 

After 
three months 

but within 

six months 

After 
six months 
but within 

one year 

After 
one year 

but within 

five years 

After 

five years Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:        
Balances with the Bank of England 2,417.5 0.6 - - - - 2,418.1 

Cash at bank and in hand 676.0 25.6 - - - - 701.6 

Investment securities - 0.1 20.9 - - 30.0 51.0 

Loans to customers 5,975.3 96.9 111.6 251.8 1,415.0 16,839.0 24,689.6 

Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging - 0.8 0.8 1.6 6.0 427.4 436.6 

Derivative financial instruments - 328.6 - - - 4.7 333.3 

Other financial assets - 7.2 - - - - 7.2 

Total financial assets 9,068.8 459.8 133.3 253.4 1,421.0 17,301.1 28,637.4 

Financial liabilities:        

Amounts due to banks 2.3 - - - - - 2.3 

Other deposits 2,473.5 - - - - - 2,473.5 

Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,876.5 11.8 - - - - 20,888.3 

Derivative financial instruments - 0.3 1.9 2.7 6.6 504.5 516.0 

Debt securities in issue 1.6 1,779.5 - 0.2 - 27.9 1,809.2 

Capital instruments - - - - - 5.1 5.1 

Other financial liabilities - 80.2 - - - - 80.2 

Total financial liabilities 23,353.9 1,871.8 1.9 2.9 6.6 537.5 25,774.6 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

Company 

On 

demand 

Within 

three 

months 

After 
three months 

but within 

six months 

After 
six months 
but within 

one year 

After 
one year 

but within 

five years 

After 

five years Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:        
Balances with the Bank of England 1,045.3 0.3 - - - - 1,045.6 
Cash at bank and in hand 622.3 30.5 - - - - 652.8 
Investment securities 300.5 31.7 17.9 26.4 23.0 124.2 523.7 
Loans to customers 6,285.2 50.6 61.6 262.9 1,548.0 18,693.6 26,901.9 
Fair value adjustments on portfolio 
hedging - 0.4 0.4 0.8 3.5 409.4 414.5 
Derivative financial instruments - 1.9 38.1 - 501.9 11.3 553.2 
Other financial assets - 14.5 - - - - 14.5 

Total financial assets 8,253.3 129.9 118.0 290.1 2,076.4 19,238.5 30,106.2 

Financial liabilities:        
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - - - - 9.8 
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - - - - 2,928.3 
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3 
Derivative financial instruments - 3.6 0.2 5.3 23.5 466.5 499.1 
Debt securities in issue 2.5 87.8 88.5 2.8 2,621.9 27.9 2,831.4 
Capital instruments - - - - - 7.8 7.8 
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - - - - 84.7 

Total financial liabilities 23,892.1 187.9 88.7 8.1 2,645.4 502.2 27,324.4 

 

HM Treasury has indicated that it expects the loan and the WCF provided to the Group by HM Treasury and the Statutory 
Debt due to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by the Group during 
its wind-down.  It is not possible to specify the contractual maturity dates of the loans to the Group from HM Treasury and 
from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme and therefore they have been included in the table above as though 
repayable on demand. 

Debt securities in issue include notes which securitise loans to customers through SPVs. These notes are repaid on a pass-
through basis.  In the above table, maturities of such notes are based on the expected repayment of notes which, in turn, 
are derived from the expected redemption profiles of securitised loans. 

In the above table, where derivatives have been taken out in order to hedge mortgage backed securitised notes, the timings 
of derivative payments are based on the expected repayment dates of the hedged notes. 

Following the repurchase and cancellation during 2014/15 of the majority of the Group’s capital instruments the remaining 
notes in issue are £5.0m principal of notes which are not callable but are assumed in the above table to be redeemed on 31 
December 2055; further details are provided in note 26. 

Other assets and liabilities are included in the above table according to the earliest date that payment can be contractually 
demanded.  It should be noted that many financial instruments are settled earlier than their contractual maturity date; in 
particular, many mortgage loans are repaid early, in full or in part.  

Assets and liabilities with a remaining period to contractual maturity of within one year are classed as current and those with 
a remaining period of more than one year are classed as non-current. Non-financial assets and liabilities of the Group 
amount to £309.7m and £193.1m respectively (2015: £146.6m and £128.9m) of which £9.1m and £60.8m respectively are 
classed as current (2015: £7.5m and £57.6m) and £300.6m and £132.3m respectively are classed as non-current (2015: 
£139.1m and £71.3m).  Non-financial assets and liabilities of the Company amount to £484.7m and £153.3m respectively 
(2015: £321.6m and £94.5m) of which £9.1m and £25.8m respectively are classed as current (2015: £7.5m and £29.4m) 
and £475.6m and £127.5m respectively are classed as non-current (2015: £314.1m and £65.1m).  
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) 

Non-derivative cash flows 

The table below analyses the Group’s and Company's non-derivative cash flows payable into relevant periods. The 
assumptions used in the preparation of this table are consistent with those used in the maturity table on pages 72 to 74.  
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash outflows; these differ from Balance Sheet values due to the 
effects of discounting on certain Balance Sheet items and due to the inclusion of contractual future interest flows.  
 

Group 

On 
demand 

Within 
three 

 months 

After 
three months 

but within 
six months 

After 
six months 

but within 
one year 

After 
one year 

but within 
five years 

After 
five years Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:        

Amounts due to banks 553.3 - - - - - 553.3 

Statutory Debt and HM 
Treasury loans 20,876.6 11.8 - - - - 20,888.3 

Debt securities in issue - 1,902.1 117.3 227.9 1,841.8 986.6 5,075.7 

Capital instruments - - - 0.4 1.5 15.7 17.6 

Other financial liabilities - 83.3 - - - - 83.3 

Loan commitments 201.4 - - - - - 201.4 

Total 21,631.2 1,997.2 117.3 228.3 1,843.3 1,002.3 26,819.6 

 

 

Group 

On 
demand 

Within 
three 

 months 

After 
three months 

but within 
six months 

After 
six months 
but within 
one year 

After 
one year 

but within 
five years 

After 
five years Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:        
Amounts due to banks 503.6 - - - - - 503.6 
Statutory Debt and HM 
Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3 
Debt securities in issue 2.5 190.5 196.4 223.4 4,131.0 1,658.2 6,402.0 
Capital instruments - - - - - 18.0 18.0 
Other financial liabilities - 87.0 - - - - 87.0 
Loan commitments 184.3 - - - - - 184.3 

Total 21,641.9 289.3 196.4 223.4 4,131.0 1,676.2 28,158.2 

 
 
 

Company 

On 
demand 

Within 
three 

 months 

After 
three months 

but within 
six months 

After 
six months 

but within 
one year 

After 
one year 

but within 
five years 

After 
five years Total 

At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:        

Amounts due to banks 2.3 - - - - - 2.3 

Other deposits 2,473.5 - - - - - 2,473.5 

Statutory Debt and HM 
Treasury loans 20,876.5 11.8 - - - - 20,888.3 

Debt securities in issue - 1,783.2 - 1.1 4.7 54.1 1,843.1 

Capital instruments - - - 0.4 1.5 15.7 17.6 

Other financial liabilities - 80.2 - - - - 80.2 

Loan commitments 166.8 - - - - - 166.8 

Total 23,519.1 1,875.2 - 1.5 6.2 69.8 25,471.8 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) 

 
Company 

On 
demand 

Within 
three 

 months 

After 
three months 

but within 
six months 

After 
six months 
but within 
one year 

After 
one year 

but within 
five years 

After 
five years Total 

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Financial liabilities:        
Amounts due to banks 9.8 - - - - - 9.8 
Other deposits 2,928.3 - - - - - 2,928.3 
Statutory Debt and HM 
Treasury loans 20,951.5 11.8 - - - - 20,963.3 
Debt securities in issue 2.5 102.2 88.7 6.2 2,580.0 49.4 2,829.0 
Capital instruments - - - - - 18.0 18.0 
Other financial liabilities - 84.7 - - - - 84.7 
Loan commitments 152.6 - - - - - 152.6 

Total 24,044.7 198.7 88.7 6.2 2,580.0 67.4 26,985.7 

 
Derivative cash flows 

The following table analyses cash outflows for the Group’s and Company's derivative financial liabilities. The amounts are 
allocated into relevant periods using assumptions consistent with those used in the preparation of the maturity table on 
pages 72 to 74. 
 

 

On 

demand  

Within 

three 

months  

After 
three months 

but within 

six months  

After 
six months 
but within 

one year  

After 
one year 

but within 

 five years 

After 

five years Total 

 
Group and Company 
 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Derivative financial liabilities to 
be settled on a net basis - 12.4 12.4 22.2 150.3 578.2 775.5 

Derivative financial liabilities to 
be settled on a gross basis:        

 - outflows - 0.4 0.4 0.8 6.3 124.3 132.2 

 - inflows - (0.7) (0.7) (1.3) (10.4) (134.0) (147.1) 

Total - 12.1 12.1 21.7 146.2 568.5 760.6 

 

 

On 

demand  

Within 

three 

months  

After 
three months 

but within 

six months  

After 
six months 
but within 

one year  

After 
one year 

but within 

 five years 

After 

five years      Total 

 
Group and Company 
 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m          £m 

Derivative financial liabilities to 
be settled on a net basis - 10.2 10.3 21.5 166.6 805.4 1,014.0 
Derivative financial liabilities to 
be settled on a gross basis:        
 - outflows - - - - - 16.1 16.1 
 - inflows - - - - (0.3) (18.9) (19.2) 

Total - 10.2 10.3 21.5 166.3 802.6 1,010.9 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 

(c) Market risk 

The following table describes the significant activities that were undertaken by the Group prior to nationalisation and which 
currently give rise to financial or market risk, the potential consequences associated with such activities and the derivative 
instruments used by the Group to mitigate the risks arising. 
 

Activity Risk Type of derivative instrument used 

Legacy funding in sterling involving either fixed 
rate instruments or instruments with embedded 
options 

Sensitivity to changes in interest 
rates 

Interest rate swaps  

Fixed and capped rate mortgages and legacy 
investments involving either fixed rate 
instruments or instruments with embedded 
options 

Sensitivity to changes in interest 
rates 

Interest rate swaps and options 

Variable rate mortgage balances Sensitivity to changes in interest 
rates 

Interest rate swaps 

Legacy investments and funding in foreign 
currencies 

Sensitivity to changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates 

Cross-currency interest rate swaps 
and foreign exchange contracts 

 
Interest rate swaps:  

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts in Cash Flow Hedge Relationships ('CFHR') 
as at 31 March 2016 were £1.8bn (2015: £1.8bn) for Group and Company. 

Gains and losses recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve on interest rate swap contracts as at 31 March 2016 will be 
continually released to the Income Statement up until the maturity of the hedging instruments in 2022.  
 
Cross currency swaps: 

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding cross currency swaps in an eligible CFHR as at 31 March 2016 were 
£3.3bn in the Group (31 Mar 2015: £4.4bn) and £1.5bn in the Company (31 Mar 2015: £2.4bn). 

The hedged transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to mature at various intervals over the next 15 
years.  Gains and losses recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve on cross currency swap contracts as at 31 March 2016 
will be released to the Income Statement during the periods in which the hedged transactions affect the Income Statement, 
the latest maturity of these transactions in the Group being in 2031.  

The accounting policy for derivatives and hedge accounting is described in note 1(i), and further details of hedge accounting 
are provided in note 32(e). 
 
Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk typically arises from mismatches between the repricing dates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities on the 
Group’s/Company's Balance Sheet, and from the investment profile of the Group’s/Company's capital and reserves. The 
Finance & Investment Director is responsible for managing this exposure within the risk exposure limits set out in the Market 
Risk policy, as approved by the Board. This policy sets out the nature of the market risks that may be taken along with 
aggregate risk limits, and stipulates the procedures, instruments and controls to be used in managing market risk.  

Market risk is the potential adverse change in income or net worth arising from movements in interest rates, exchange rates 
or other market prices. Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining stable net interest 
income. 

The Group measures, monitors and controls the following interest rate risks and sensitivities: 

 Mismatch risk 

 Curve 

 Prepayment risk 

 Basis risk 

 Reset risk 
 
Exposures are reviewed as appropriate by senior management and the Board with a frequency between daily and monthly, 
related to the granularity of the position. 

Interest rate risk exposure is predominantly managed through the use of interest rate derivatives, principally interest rate 
swaps.  The Group/Company also use asset and liability positions to offset exposures naturally wherever possible to 
minimise the costs and risks of arranging transactions external to the Group/Company. 
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34.  Financial risk management (continued) 

 

(c) Market risk (continued) 

Interest rate sensitivities are reported to ALCO monthly and are calculated using a range of interest rate scenarios, 
including non-parallel shifts in the yield curve.  
 
The main metrics used by management are: 
 
(i) the change in value of the Group’s net worth due to a notional 2% parallel move in market and base rates. 
 
    31 Mar 2016 

£m 
31 Mar 2015 

£m 

2% increase    (10.9) 11.9 
2% decrease    6.9 (15.8) 

 
(ii) the sensitivity of the Group’s interest margin over 12 months to a notional 2% parallel move in market and base rates. 
 
    31 Mar 2016 

£m 
31 Mar 2015 

£m 

2% increase    442.0 451.1 
2% decrease    (112.7) (110.7) 

 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group’s policy is to hedge all material foreign currency exposures by use of naturally offsetting foreign currency assets 
and liabilities or by the use of derivatives. Consequently, at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 the Group and Company had 
no net material exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations or changes in foreign currency interest rates.   

The impact on the Group’s and Company's profit and equity of reasonably possible changes in exchange rates compared to 
actual rates would not have been material at 31 March 2016 or 31 March 2015. 

The table below summarises the Group's and Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the Balance 
Sheet date. Included in the table are the Group's and Company's financial instruments, under the relevant currency 
headings. The amounts disclosed are the sterling equivalents of the notional amounts due on maturity, including interest 
accrued at the Balance Sheet date, less any impairment provisions. 
 

Group € $ Other Total 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Cash at bank and in hand 564.0 12.8 - 576.8 

Investment securities 1.6 2.1 - 3.7 

Derivative financial instruments 3,005.0 842.0 175.9 4,022.9 

Total financial assets 3,570.6 856.9 175.9 4,603.4 

     
Financial liabilities:     

Amounts due to banks 551.1 - - 551.1 

Derivative financial instruments 98.8 31.3 - 130.1 

Debt securities in issue 2,920.0 828.4 175.9 3,924.3 

Total financial liabilities 3,569.9 859.7 175.9 4,605.5 

     

Net currency gap 0.7 (2.8) - (2.1) 

 
Group € $ Other Total 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Cash at bank and in hand 510.0 15.9 - 525.9 
Investment securities 65.6 44.0 - 109.6 
Derivative financial instruments 3,598.0 940.5 416.2 4,954.7 

Total financial assets 4,173.6 1,000.4 416.2 5,590.2 

     
Financial liabilities:     
Amounts due to banks 493.8 - - 493.8 
Derivative financial instruments 34.0 74.0 - 108.0 
Debt securities in issue 3,645.5 925.7 416.2 4,987.4 

Total financial liabilities 4,173.3 999.7 416.2 5,589.2 

     

Net currency gap 0.3 0.7 - 1.0 
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34. Financial risk management (continued) 

 
(c) Market risk (continued) 

 
Foreign currency risk (continued) 

 
Company € $ Other Total 
At 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     

Cash at bank and in hand 12.9 12.8 - 25.7 

Investment securities  87.5 15.8 - 103.3 

Derivative financial instruments 1,623.4 - 175.9 1,799.3 

Total financial assets 1,723.8 28.6 175.9 1,928.3 

     
Financial liabilities:     

Derivative financial instruments 98.8 31.3 - 130.1 

Debt securities in issue 1,623.4 - 175.9 1,799.3 

Total financial liabilities 1,722.2 31.3 175.9 1,929.4 

     

Net currency gap 1.6 (2.7) - (1.1) 

 
Company € $ Other Total 
At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m £m 

Financial assets:     
Cash at bank and in hand 16.2 15.9 - 32.1 
Investment securities  65.6 44.0 - 109.6 
Derivative financial instruments 2,181.3 - 416.2 2,597.5 

Total financial assets 2,263.1 59.9 416.2 2,739.2 

     
Financial liabilities:     
Derivative financial instruments 34.0 74.0 - 108.0 
Debt securities in issue 2,224.9 - 416.2 2,641.1 

Total financial liabilities 2,258.9 74.0 416.2 2,749.1 

     

Net currency gap 4.2 (14.1) - (9.9) 

 
 
35.  Contingent liabilities 

 
(a) On 20 January 2009 a solicitor's letter was received notifying B&B and certain present and former B&B directors of a 
potential claim by former individual shareholders who subscribed for additional shares in the £401m rights issue approved 
on 17 July 2008. These former shareholders claim to have suffered loss through having been induced to subscribe for 
shares in the rights issue by allegedly materially misleading and/or incomplete statements made in the associated 
prospectus dated 24 June 2008 as revised and supplemented by the supplementary prospectus dated 11 July 2008. Should 
such a claim result in proceedings which are pursued through the courts and which succeed, the defendant directors and/or 
B&B could be liable in damages to certain former shareholders in B&B who subscribed for shares in the rights issue. In May 
2009 B&B together with its legal advisors responded to the allegations raised. Nothing further was heard until 23 January 
2012 when correspondence was received from the solicitors representing the former shareholders, to which B&B together 
with its legal advisors responded. This correspondence contained no further allegations or details of the former 
shareholders’ potential claim. It is not possible at this stage to determine the outcome or timing of any conclusion to this 
matter.  No provision has been made in respect of these allegations. 

(b) In October 2014 the Group sold a portfolio of standard mortgages for £902.0m. Under the terms of the sale, the Group 
provided certain warranties. Any claim under these warranties must be made by 1 August 2016. The Group’s maximum 
liability under these warranties is limited to £44.2m (Company: £31.8m). 

(c) A 2014 decision of the Supreme Court in the Plevin case held that the non-disclosure of the commissions on a single 
premium PPI policy made the relationship between the lender and the borrower unfair under section 140A of the Consumer 
Credit Act 1974. The FCA is formally consulting on its position and has issued a preliminary statement which indicated that if 
a firm failed to disclose commission which represents 50% or more of the premium, customers may have to be 
compensated. No additional compensation is required where customers have already had a complaint handled and upheld 
under the FCA’s current PPI complaint handling rules. At this stage, it is not possible to estimate reliably any potential 
financial impact for the Group or Company. 

(d) B&B’s lending and other consumer credit business is governed by consumer credit law and other regulations. Claims 
upheld in favour of customers in relation to potential breaches of these could result in costs to B&B. It is not possible to 
provide any meaningful estimate or range of the possible cost. 

(e) The Company has provided a number of financial guarantees to other B&B Group companies. The Directors believe that 
the possibility that any claims will be made under these guarantees is remote and hence no provision has been made. 
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35.  Contingent liabilities (continued) 

 
(f) From the date of the contract with Computershare detailed in note 37, B&B provided certain warranties and indemnities to 
Computershare in respect of the transfer of the mortgage servicing business. The contract sets various time limits for 
bringing claims under the warranties and indemnities which vary depending upon the nature of such warranties and 
indemnities, with the majority being limited to 24 months from the date on which the outsourced servicing contract 
commences. 
 
36.  Ultimate controlling party 

 
All shares in the Company were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September 2008 as 
a result of The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008. On 1 October 2010 all shares in 
the Company were acquired via a share-for-share exchange by UK Asset Resolution Limited, a private limited company 
incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom, which is wholly owned by the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM 
Treasury and is the Group's ultimate parent undertaking. UK Asset Resolution Limited heads the largest and smallest group 
of companies into which the Financial Statements of B&B are consolidated. Copies of the financial statements of UK Asset 
Resolution Limited may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Croft Road, Crossflatts, Bingley BD16 2UA. The 
Company considers the UK government to remain its ultimate controlling party.  The results of the UKAR Group are 
consolidated into those of HM Treasury as presented in HM Treasury’s Annual Reports and Accounts. 
 
 
37.  Events after the reporting period 

 
On 4 May 2016 the Group announced that it had signed a contract to transfer the Group’s mortgage servicing operations 
and associated servicing assets of c. £43m to Computershare. The agreement, which will see Computershare service the 
Group’s mortgage assets and unsecured loans for a seven year period, will also involve around 1,700 colleagues 
transferring to Computershare. No assets were classified as ‘held for sale’ at 31 March 2016 as, at that date, the servicing 
operations remained fully integrated with the wider business of the Group and were not available for immediate sale. Under 
the terms of the contract, the Group provided certain warranties and indemnities to Computershare, as detailed in note 35 
(f). 
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